MINISTRY OF JOBS, TOURISM AND SKii LS TRAINING
AND MINISTER RESPONSIBLE FOR LABOUR
INFORMATION NOTE
Cliff #: 109660

Date: June 11, 2015

PREPARED FOR: Honourable Shirley Bond, Minister

ISSUE: Ontario’s new lmmigration Act (May 28, 2015)

BACKGROUND:

s On May 28", 2015 Ontario passed the Ontario Immigration Act (the Act) which is
a key lever in the government's public immigration strategy to help maximize the
economic benefits of immigration in the pravince.

» The Ontario Ministry of Citizenship, Immigration and International Trade
announced that the legistation will;

o

o

o]

Facilitate Ontario’s work with the federal government on the recruitment,
selection and admission of skilled immigrants,

Strengthen the province's ongoing efforts to reduce fraud by protecting the
integrity of Ontario’s immigrant selection program and improve
accountability, and

Increase transparency and information-sharing with the province's
fmrmigration partners.

» The enabling legistation provides the Minister responsible for immigration in
Ontario (or delegate) to do the following:

o

Make regulations establishing an employer registry (similar to Manitoba’s
legislation) for those who hire foreign workers from overseas, including
creating an inspection, investigation and enforcement function.

Establish a recruiter registry and penalties for violating registry conditions,
which could include a fine, jail time and performance bond as well as a
public ban for a period of time.

Establish and govern selection programs (e.g. the Ontario Provincial
Nominee Program) that would set out a process for sefecting foreign
nationals for admission to Canada as either permanent immigrants or as
temporary residents. These programs can only be established if the
Governments of Ontario and Canada have an agreement that authorizes
the program.

Make orders establishing or continuing funding programs to promote the
settiement and integration of immigrants

Impose administrative penalties of up to $150K for each contravention of
the Act.
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e Ontario is the fourth province to introduce legislation to ensure greater employer
compliance and TFW protections. To date, Manitoba (2009), Nova Scotia
(2011,2013) and Saskatchewan (2013) have introeduced similar changes
regarding employer treatment of foreign workers.

DISCUSSION:

| egislation is not the only tcol under which greater invelvement in immigration
matters can be aftained in the provinces. Bi-lateral immigration agreements provide
provincial governments with the primary means to develop and implement
administrative policy. Most of the provinces have immigration agreements with the
Government of Canada except Ontario (the Canada-Ontario Immigration Agreement
expired in 2011).

Even though Ontario’s new legislation establishes the ability for Ontario to introduce
immigration selection programs and apply selection criteria that will benefit the
Province, Ontario can only do this within the confines of their immigration agreement
with the federal government. The same holds for BC, such that simiar immigration
legislation would not further enable greater authority over immigration selection; but
can strengthen integrity and operations of existing selection mechanisms (such as
the Provincial Nominee Program).

BC does not have specific legislation for foreign worker protections. All workers in
BC, including foreign workers, are covered under the Employment Standards Act.
BC has decided that it is not necessary to create a recruiter or employer registry via
legislation or other means because the information provided through such registries
is available through information sharing agreements with the federal government;
creating provincial registries would be a duplication of resources.

SUMMARY:

e Although Ontario has introduced enabling legislation to have some provincial
impact on the selection of economic immigrants, there is very little the Ontario
Government can do without obtaining Canada’s agreement.

s BC has just successfully negotiated a new immigration agreement with CIC and
continues to work closely with the federal government on key priorities such as
enhancing TFW protections under the Foreign Worker Annex.

Contact: Scott MacDonald, ADM, Labour Market and Immigration Division
Telephone: (250) 953-3585 Cell: 17

" Reviewed by
Dir: ED: KG ADM: DSM DM: | MIN:
35250
¥ Bradbury
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MINISTRY OF JOBS, TOURISM AND SKILLS TRAINING
AND MINISTER RESPONSIBLE FOR LABOUR
MEETING NOTE

Cliff # 109617

Date: June 19, 2015

PREPARED FOR:
Honourable Shirley Bond, Minister and Honourable Naomi Yamamoto, Minister

DATE AND TIME OF MEETING: June 25, 2015, 2:00 to 4:00 p.m., Boardrcom 1, PVO

ATTENDEES:

Destination BC: Andrea Shaw, Chair, Board of Directors
Marsha Walden, Chief Executive Officer

JTST: Athana Mentzelopoulos, Deputy Minister
Kaaren Lewis, ADM, Tourism and Small Business Division

ISSUE(S): Quarterly meeting with Destination British Columbia (DBC)

BACKGROUND: The Taxpayer Accountability Principles (TAP) initiative, released on
June 11, 2014, placed a substantial focus on strengthening two-way communication
between government and provincial pubiic sector entities through, amang other things,
quarterly meetings between Ministers and Crown Board Chairs and executive. This
quarterly meeting with DBC is consistent with Ministers’ and Crowns’ obligations under
TAP.

A proposed agenda is attached as Appendix 1. DBC will primarily update Ministers on:

1. key initiatives under DBC's three-year Corporate Strategy and Marketing Plan;

2. actions to fulfit 2015/16 Mandate Letter directives and other
Government priorities; and

3. the year-to-date status of economic performance of BC's tourism sector.

There is also time on the proposed agenda for Ministers to communicate updates on
Government priorities to DBC, if they so choose.
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DISCUSSION:
1. DBC Corporate Strategy and Marketing Plan

a) Brand Roll-out/Marketing Highlights

DBC is expecting to update Ministers on its wide-ranging marketing initiatives,
including the roll-out of the revitalized Super, Natural British Columbia tourism
brand. Since its launch in November 2104, the brand message was incorperated in
to the 2015 Winier/Ski campaign, and DBC'’s print, web, social media and other
campaigns in priority markets such as BC, Ontario, California and Alberta. DBC
has made good progress in working with the Regional Destination Marketing
Organizations (RDMOs) to align provincial and regional marketing using the brand
and has connected with the travel trade to share brand imagery and logos.

As its next steps, DBC is reaching out to engage BC'’s tourism industry, including
Community Destination Marketing Organizations (CDMOs), to encourage them to
align their marketing materials with the brand message. As of the week of June 15,
DBC and RDMOs will meet with small groups of stakeholders in each region to
educate them on the brand message and explore opportunities 1o inspire uptake by
tourism businesses and sector/community organizations. At a later date, DBC may
also try to connect in the same way with provincial government agencies
responsible for tourism-related assets; e.g. BC Parks, Pavco, and BC Ferries.

DBC has made great progress with their brand development and roli-out strategy
and, if successful, their efforts will align BC’s tourism marketing system.

b) Visitor Servicing

i, Visitor Centre Base Funding Adjustment - DBC is expecied to update
Ministers on action it has taken to respond to concerns raised by
representatives of the Lumby and Armstrong community visitor centres.
To ensure an equitable and fair approach is taken with all community
visitor centres with characteristics similar to those of Lumby and
Armstrong, DBC has increased the base fee-for-service for 17 centres
across the province. The total incremental cost is approximately $54,000
for 2015/16, and will be absorbed within DBC’s overall budget.

ji.  BC Visitor Centre (BCVC) Status Update — DBC continues to explore
transition business cases for each of the five remaining BCVCs to identify
business and cost efficiencies, while still ensuring visitors have access to
high-quality travel information whenever and wherever they need it. As
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directed by Minister Bond, each transition business case will be brought
forward for Ministers’ review hefore any steps are taken. At this meeting,
DBC is expected to advise the first transition business case, for the BCVC
at Mt. Robson, will be ready for review by mid to late July, following
consultations with local government representatives and tourism
stakeholders in the Valemount area. DBC may ask to reserve time in the
Ministers’ calendars for a briefing during that timeframe.

c} Cooperative Marketing Program

The Cooperative Marketing Program is DBC's main vehicle to provide financial
support for community and sector tourism marketing. Consistent with direction
in its 2015/16 Mandate letter and the principles in its Corporate Strategy, DBC
has been working on significant changes to its cooperative marketing programs
to incent greater alignment between community/sector and DBC marketing
strategies, and more effective use of marketing funds.

A pilot version of the program was faunched in the Vancouver Coast Mountains
region in Aprii 2015, with plans to incorporate lessons learned into a final
program maodel to be rolled out through the rest of the province in 2016/17.
Since then, the province-wide program guidelines have been revised and
reviewed with DBC’s Tourism Marketing Committee and Board of Directors.
DBC plans to post the province-wide guidelines and solicit applications for
2016/17 funding on June 30, 2015.

d) Remarkable Experiences Program Pilots

DBC has been refining its suite of supports for tourism business development,
which include access to consumer intelligence, market research, and fraining
materials, delivered through downloadable guides, webinars and facilitated
workshaps. As part of this program, DBC will be launching pilot workshops for
the Remarkable Experiences program in five communities within the next few
months. At this meeting, DBC is expected to provide Ministers with an overview
of the purpose and goals of these workshops, and how they will support tourism
industry development.
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2. Performance Reporting

a) Actions to fulfil 2015/16 Mandate Letter priorities, and progress to date against
DBC's 2015/16 Service Plan performance measures

Through the 2015/18 Mandate Letter, Government directed DBC to focus on
four specific priorities. DBC's planned actions are outlined under Goals 1 to 3 in
its 2015/16 Service Plan, released with Balanced Budget 2015 on February 17,
2015.

15/16 Mandate Letter Priority DBC 15/16 Service Plan Goal

| Enhance marketing efforts Goal 1: Lead Canada in growth of overnight
: visitor expenditures

Deliver warld-class visitor Goal 2: Remarkable Guest Experiences
experiences
Improve marketing alignment; Goal 3: Create a powerful marketing
network

Expand BC's tourism offerings,
businesses and jobs

At this meeting, DBC is expected speak in greater detail about the actions it has
taken and pians to take, to meet the direction in its 2015/16 Mandate Letter, and
to update Ministers, where possible, on year-to-date results against its 2015/16
Service Plan performance measures. As of June 18, 2015, the Tourism Policy
Branch had not yet received a copy of the materials that will be presented to
Ministers, but note that DBC's report may be minimal at this point, as most of the
data it requires to evaluate its performance is only available on an annual basis.
it is believed that DBC intends to demonstrate its commitment to a performance-
based approach by maintaining this as a standing item on all future quarterly
meeting agendas.

b) Industry Performance Update

DBC is expected to demonstrate that tourism industry performance continues on
its upward trend, using data that is already in the public realm (e.g. 2013 revenue,
GDP and jobs data). DBC may also highlight new information; for example,

April 2015 international visitor arrival results, which show overall international
overnight entries to British Columbia increased:

s 5.5 percent in April 2015 over Aprit 2014, and
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s 7.6 percent year-to-date {January — Aprit 2015) over the same period in
2014,

Arrivals from some priority markets were also up:

% Increases in Overmght Entries
Market April 2015 over | Year to Date
.. April 2014 (January—April 2015 over 2014)
United States £97 £9.0
China +106 +11.0
South Korea - +386 +59

Other key indicators of 2015 industry performance also reflect a continued
upward trend. There have been positive increases in provincial accommodation
occupancy rates, provincial restaurant receipts, and YVR and BC passenger
volumes. The only performance indicator to show negative growth is the number
of travel parties to visitor centres between January-April 2015, which fell by 9.3%
compared to the same time period in 2014.

3. Next Steps/Other items
s.13

SUGGESTED RESPONSE/KEY MESSAGING:

.13
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ATTACHMENTS:

Appendix 1: Proposed Agenda

Contact: Kaaren Lewis, ADM, Tourism and Small Business Division, JTST
Telephone: (250) 8562-0367

Page 6

Prepared by: Katherine Rowe, Director, Governance and Legislation, Tourism Branch
Telephone: 250-356-1489

Reviewed by

ED: AB

ADM:

L LPM

MIN:
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PROPOSED AGENDA

Ministers’ Quarterly Meeting with Destination BC

2:00 - 4:00 p.m., June 25, 2015
Boardroom #1, 999 Canada Place, Vancouver
Attendees

Ministers B ~Destination BC
Hon. Shirley Bond Andrea Shaw : Athana Mentzelopouios

Hon. Naomi Yamamoto | Marsha Walden Kaaren Lewis

Purpose of the meeting: To update Ministers on Destination BC's priority initiatives
and partnershlps

1. Minister / Deputy Minister update on Government priorities (as'épp!icable)

2. Status Reporis:

a) DBC Corporate Strategy and Marketmq P!an
+ Brand RollouUMarketlng nghllghts
s Visitor’ Semcmg

o Visitor Centre Base Fundmg Ad;ustment
.6 BCVC Status Update :
- COOperatwe Marketlng Partnership Program
. - Remarkable- Expenences Program Pilots

b) Performance Reporting
o Actions to fulfii 15/16 Mandate Letter Priorities
e 15/16 Service Plan Performance Measures

« Tourism Industry Performance

3. Next Steps/Other Topics
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MINISTRY OF JOBS, TOURISM AND SKILLS TRAINING
AND MINISTER RESPONSIBLE FOR LABOUR
DECISION NOTE

Cliff #: 109548
X Ref: 109547

Date: June 11, 2015

PREPARED FOR: Minister of Jobs, Tourism and Skills Training and Minister
Respoensible for Labour

ISSUE: Minister approval of 2014/15 Trades Training Consortium of BC (TTCBC)
Annual Service Plan Report is required by June 19, 2015.

BACKGROUND: As government organizations within the Government Reporting
Entity, Crown corporations are subject to the Budget Transparency and Accountability
Act (BTAA) and are required ta prepare annuai service plan reports to be made public
by the responsible Minister no [ater than August 31, 2015 or the end of five months after
the end of the preceding fiscal year of the government organization.

While government is working with TTCBC to complete the required steps to proceed
with its dissolution as a not-for-profit society (consistent with recommendation #10 of the
McDonald Report), TTCBC is nonetheless required to report out on its progress towards
achieving the goals set out in its 2014/15 Service Plan.

After the 2014/15 TTCBC Annual Service Plan Report (ASPR) is approved by its Board
of Directors and Minister responsible, it will be returned to Corporate Planning and
Priorities (CPP), Management Services Division. CPP is responsible for working with
the Crown Agency Resource Office (CARO) to support tabling the report and having it
published on the BC government and Crown websites. Submission of approved ASPR
to the CARO is required by June 19, 2015.

DISCUSSION: CARO developed Crown corporation Annual Service Plan Report
Guidelines and Templates to support transparency, consistency and accountability
across Crown corporations reporting. The following requirements are new for 2014/15
annual service plan reports and reflect similar changes introduced for Ministry and
Crown corporation Service Plans tabled on February 17, 2015, including:

» Limit of 15 pages (excluding title page, table of contents, financial reporting, and
appendices);

e Use of hyperlinks to reference existing documernts:
Elimination of photos and graphics;

» Requirement to identify and report on implementation of government direction,
per the Government Letters of Expectations (GLE) and the Taxpayer
Accountability Principles Addendum to the 2014 GLE;
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» Financial information is to be presented in bullet form or in footnotes; and,
» Focus is on information pertinent to performance management and planning.

Ministry staff provided guidance and assistance to TTCBC staff towards finalizing the
accompanying annual service pian report. The Assistant Deputy Minister, Labour
Market and Immigration, reviewed and approved the 2014/15 TTCBC ASPR.

Management Services Division, CARO and Treasury Board Staff provided a further
level of review to confirm consistency with:

« BTAA requirements;

e Cabhinet direction through the 2014 GLE and the Taxpayer Accountability
Principles;

« Government expenditures; and,
CARO'’s Crown Corporation Annuai Service Plan Report Guidelines.

The TTCBC Board of Directors approved the 2014/15 TTCBC Annual Service Plan
Report.

OPTIONS:
1. Approve 2014/15 Trades Training Consortium of BC Annual Service Plan Report

2. Approve 2014/15 Trades Training Consortium of BC Annual Service Plan Report
with changes

RECOMMENDATION: Option 1

ATTACHMENT: 2014/15 Trades Training Consortium of BC Annual Service Plan
Report

Approved / Not Approved Date:

i Comments:

Contact: Amie Foster, Manager Policy and Review, Management Services Division
Telephone: (250) 356-2036

Reviewed by

Dir: ED: ADM: DSM DM: AM
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Trades Training Consortium of British Columbia

2014/15 -2016/17
ANNUAL SERVICE PLAN REPORT

BRITISH
COLUMBIA
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For more information on the Trades Training Consortium of BC (TTBC) visit our websile at:

wiww. radestrainingbe.ca
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Trades Training Consortium of British Columbia

Board Chair’s Message and Accountability Statement

On behalf of the Dircctors, I am pleased to present the Trades Training Consortium of British
Columbia’s (TTBC) Annual Service Plan Report for the 2014/15 fiscal year.

Over the past 12 months TTBC has worked closely with the 14 trades training institutions and
Government in order to meet the performance goals outlined in the Service Plan.

The Trades Training Consortium of BC’s 2014/15 Annual Service Plan Report compares the
corporation’s actual results to the expected results identificd in the 2014/15 - 2016717 Service
Plan. As the Board Chair, | am accountable for, and attest to the results as reported.

R, Pldook

Signature
Kathy Kinloch, TTBC Board Chair

2014/15 Anmual Service Plan Report 3
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Trades Training Consortium of British Columbia

Purpose of the Organization

TTBC's primary purpose is to help coordinate the development of the annual public post-secondary
trades training plan for BC, and to serve as a forum by which the training leaders, primarily post-
secondary institutional Presidents and Trades Deans, share information on emerging issues or
requirements of the public training system. TTBC also develops strategies that align public post-
secondary institutional capacity with the demand for trades training in BC. The strategies include
providing advice to the Government and industry on the forccasted skills and trades training required,
thercby directly supporting the economic growth of the province.

Strategic Direction and Context

Strategic Direction

The Consortium was directed to take the following specific actions:

1. Continue to werk collaboratively with the Miuistry of Jobs, Tourism and Skills Training to
clarify the priorities, role, mandate and capacity of the Consortium, based on the outcomes of
the fall 2013 review of the role and function of the Industry Training Authority (ITA).

2. Continue to support Government priorities related to trades training in the province, including
actions consistent with the British Columbia Skills and Training Plan and the Minister of Jobs,
Tourism and Skills Training June 2013 mandate letter.

Strategic Context

The review of the Industry Training Authority (the McDonald Report), released on April 29, 2014
recommended that the Trades Training Consortium of BC no longer be designated as a Crown
Agency.

Ta this end, as part of the requirement to remove the designation, the TTBC Board made a decision to
dissolve as a not-for profit Society and it is expected that the final steps necessary to wrap-up the
requircments as a Crown will be completed by mid-June, 2015. TTBC will maintain their name and
will continue 1o serve as a forum of trades training delivery leaders, but as an ad hoc consortium and
non-registered entity. At the April 13" Meeting of the Members, the Board approved new terms of
reference for the Consortium that will scrve to guide their organizational priorities through 2015/16.

Report on Performance

TTBC’s priority throughout 2014/15 was to address recommendation #10 of the McDonald Report
and undertake the steps required to remove the status as a Government Reporting Entity. Despite this
shift in focus, the following previously established performance measures were achisved.

2014/15 Annual Service Plan R eport 4
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Trades Training Consortium of British Columbia

Goal 1: To coordinate the development of a system-wide public training plan that aligns
capacity with labour market demand.

Strategies

® Facilitate collaboration and coordination with public trades training institutions

« Align supply of training with labour market requirements

s Raise awareness of public trades training available for the BC labour market

Performance Measure

2014/15 Target |

2004/15
Results

Completion of an annual system-wide

Training Plan.

Plan completed as set
by the ITA

Plan completed — Target
Achieved

Completion of tradestrainingbc.ca Complete by Conipleted — Target

website upgrade September 2014 Achieved

Meeting Target System Utilization .

rates for Apprentices and Foundation TBD by ITA ITA conﬁrm? system

g target achieved
gats

2014/135 Annual Service Plan Report 5
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Trades Training Consortium of British Columbia

Goal 2: Continue to support Government priorities related to trades training in the
provinee, specifically in regards to the British Columbia Skills and Training Plans of Action

Strategies
¢ Promote and profile today’s training options for tomorrow’s careers in skilled trades and
technical fields through a Youth Engagement Strategy (Discover Skills BC).
e Work with thc Public Post-Secondary Trades Training providers and the ITA to help ensure
the right mix and quality of trades and technical programs are available to British Columbians
throughout the province.

Performance Measure

L 2014/15
2014715 Target Results
Achieved Target — 66,000
Annual marketing and promotion March 2015 portal visitors, 47 student

cngagement activities are successful produced videos, 32
Discover trades videos

Completed — included
dissolution plan

Operational and planning report to

TTBRC Board February 2015

Completed 3 meelings
Hold regular meetings with Deans of . N with Deans of Trades and
Trades and with key stakeholders Phroughout 2014/15 over 20 meetings with
other stakeholders

There were no other goals, objectives or performance measurcs identified in the 2014/15 Service Plan,
recognizing that the focus was to maintain operations while wrapping up TTBC status as a Crown
Agency as recommended in the McDonald Report.

2014715 Annual Service Plan Réﬁort 6
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Trades Training Consortium of British Columbia

Financial Report

Financial Statermernts of

TRADES TRAINING CONSORTIUM
OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

Year ended March 31, 2015

DRAFT - May 14, 2015

2014/15 Annual Service Plan Report 7
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Trades Training Consortium of British Columbia

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of Trades Training Consortium of British Columbia
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Trades Training Consortium of British
Columnbia, which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2013, the staternents of
operations and ascumulated surplus, changes in nel financial assets and cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes, a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Managament's Responsibiity for the Financial Stalements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial staterents in
agecordance with Canadian public sector accounting standargs, and for such internat control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or grror,

Auditors’ Responsibifity
Our responsibility is 0 express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepled auditing standards. Those

standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform an audil to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial staterments are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves pedforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financiat statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditer considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the enlity's internal contrel. An audit also includes evaluating the approprateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accourting estimates made by managemernt, as
welt as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinior.

DRAFT - May 14, 2015

2014/15 Annual Service Plan Report 8
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Trades Training Consottium of British Columbia

Bna

Qpirion
In our opinion, the finandial statements present faidy, in alt materal respects, the finaneial position of
the Trades Training Consortium of British Columbia as at March 31, 2015 and its resuits of
operations, changes in net financiat assels and its eash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Canzadian public sector accounting standards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Saciety Act (British Columbia}, we report that, in our opinion, the accounting
principles in the Canadian public sector accounting standards have been applied en a basis
consistant with that of the preceding year.

Chartered Accouniants
2015

Bumaby, Canada

DRAFT - May 14, 2015

2014/15 Annual Service Plan Report 9
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Trades Training Consortium of British Columbia

Staterrert of Finangial Position

March 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

TRADES TRAINING CONSORTIUM OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

2015 2014
Financial assets:
Cash % 18,505 $ g4 876
invesiment (note 3) 500,000 700,000
Accounts receivable 8523 68,753
525,028 863 728
Liahilities:
Acrounts payable and acorued liabilities 70,373 38,018
Deferred contributions {(note 4) 353,011 713,510
423383 749 629
Met financial 2assets and accumulated surphs % 101,645 $ 114198
See accompanying noles to financial statements.
Appraved on behalf of the Board:
Director Director
1
DRAFT - May 14, 2015
2014715 Annual Service Plan Report 10

21 of 105



Trades Training Consortium of British Calumbia

Year ended March 31, 2015, with comparative inforrmation for 2014

TRADES TRAINING CONSORTIUM OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus

Bugget 2015 2014
{rie 7)
Revenue:
Grands and contributions {note 4) 348,518 385,499 & 304620
Membership dues 100,000 106,000 100,000
Interast 8,000 8,202 7.532
Other income - 506 17,509
458,518 492 257 429,66
Expenses:
Administration 81,620 119,312 79,304
Trades training development projects 374 898 385,488 304,620
456 518 504,811 383924
Anrual surpius (deficit) - (12,564) 45737
Accumulated surplus, begirning of year 114,189 114,199 68 462
Accumulated surplus, end of year 114,189 101,645 $ 114168

DRAFT - May 14, 2015

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2014/15 Annual Service Plan Report
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Trades Training Consortium of British Columbia

TRADES TRAINING CONSORTIUM OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assats

Year ended March 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014

Budget 2015 2014
Arnual surplus [deficit) 5 - % (12 554) 3 45,737
Increase (decrease) in net finarcial assets - {12,5564) 45,737
Net financial assets, beginning of year 114,188 114,188 63,462
Net financial assets, end of year & 114,188 $ 11,645 S 114,198

See accomparnying noles to financial statemarnts.

DRAFT - May 14, 2015

2014/15 Annual Service Plan Report 12
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o Trades Training Consortium of British Columbia

Staternent of Cash Flows

Year ended March 31, 2015, with comparative infarmatian for 2014

TRADES TRAINING CONSORTIUM OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

2015 2014
Cash provided by {used in):
Operaling:
Annual surpius (deficit) g {12,554} % 45737
Non-cash item;
Restricted contributions spent and recognized as revenue {385,499} {304,620
Changes in non-cash working capitah:
Pecrease {increase) in ascounts recaivable 60,230 (23,529)
Increase {decrease]) in accounts payable and acerued liabilties 34,353 {32 346)
Deferred contributions received 25, 000 150,000
{278,470) {164,758)
Irvestments:
Redemption of investment 200,000 100,000
200,600 100,000
Decrease in cash {78,470) {64,758}
Cash, beginning of year 94,975 159,733
Cash, end of year 3 16,505 3 94,975

See accompanying rotes to financial statermarts.

DRAFT - May 14, 2015

2014715 Annual Service Plan Report 13
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Trades Training Consortium of British Columbia

TRADES TRAINING CONSORTIUM OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

MNotes to Financial Stalements

Year ended March 31, 2015

1. Operations:

The Trades Training Consodium of British Columbia (the "Consortiur™) was incorporated on
September 8, 2005 under the Society Act (British Columbia). The purpose of the Consortium is to
promote trades training in Briish Columbia through encouraging and supporting communication
and co-ordiation among British Columbia educational institutions and businesses. The
Consorlium membars are comprised of fifteen educational institutions in British Colurnbia that
offer trades training programs. The Consortium is exempt from income taxes.

2, Significant accounting policies:

These financial statemeris have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards as prescribed by the Public Sector Accourting Board of the Charered
Professional Accountants Canada. The significant accounting policies are as foliows:

{z) Revenue recognition:

Government transfers and externally restricted contributions are deferred and recognized as
revenue when the associated stipulations per the agreements are mel Unrestricted
contributions are recognized as revenue when received ot receivable if the amount to be
received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

(b} lrvestrmert:

Irvestment consists of a guaranteed irvestment certificate (GIC) and is recorded at
amortizad cost.

{) Non-financial asseis:

Non-financial assels are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in
the provision of services. They have useful lives that may exdend beyond ihe curent year and
are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.

{d) Contributed services:

—

Employees from member educational institutions contribule time to the Consortium each
year. Any donated services ere not recognized in the financial statements. Any services
pravided urkiar 2 contract are recorded based on the values agreed to in the confract.

(&) Use of estimates:

—

In preparing the financial statements, management makes estimates and assumptions 1hat
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial staterments and the reporied amounts of revenue and
expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

DRAFT - May 14, 2015
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Trades Training Consortium of British Columbia

TRADES TRAINING CONSORTIUM OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

Notes to Financial Statements (cortinued)

Year ended March 31, 2015

2. Sigmificant accounting policies {continued}:
{fi Financial instruments;

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition. Derivative instruments
that are quoted in an active markel are reported at fair value. All other financial instrumernts
are subsequertly recorded at cost or amortized cost unless management has efected to canry
the instruments at fair value.

Unrealized changes in farr value are not recognized until they are realized, wien they are
recorded in the statement of operations and accumulated surplus.

Transaction costs incurrad on the acquisition of financial instruments measured subsequently
at fair value are expensed as incurred. Al other financial instruments are adjusted by
transaction costs incurred on acquisition and financing costs, which are amortized using the
straight-fine method.

All financial assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis. When a decline is
determined to be ather than temporary, the ameunt of the loss is reported in the statement of
operztions.

The Consortiumn does not have any financial instruments that are required or elected te be
recorded at fair value. The Consortium has not eriered inlo any derivative contracts or
identified any ambedded derivatives.

(9) Segmented reporting and functional presertation;

The operations of the Consertium are comprised of a single function, promoting trades
training. As a result, expenses are presented by object on the statement of operations and
accumulated surplus and there are no additioral segmented disclosures.

3. Investment:

Investmert consists of a guaranteed irvestment certificate with a matunity date within the next
fiscal year. The interest rate on the investment is 1.0% {2014 - 1.0%). The fair vaiue of the
investment approximates book value due fa its shart-term nature,

4. Deferred contributions:

Deferred contributions represent externally restricted contributions received by the Consortium for
specific projects and programs. The amounts ate recognized as revenue when spent on the
specified projects ar programs. Changgs in deferred cantributions are as follows:

205 2014
Baiarnce, beginning of year § 713510 & 868,130
Amourtts received during the year 25000 130,000
Recegnized as revenue in the year (385,488) {304 620}
Balance, end of year $ 353,011 3 713510

DRAFT - May 14, 2015
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Trades Training Consortium of British Columbia

TRADES TRAINING CONSORTIUM OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2015

5. Fair vatue of financial instruments and ralated financial risks:

The Consortium's financial instruments consist of cash, investment, accounts receivable, and
accounis payable and accrued labilities. The fair values of these financial insfruments
approximate their cartying values due lo their short maturities.

The Consortium js exposed to interest rate risk on ifs fixed rate investment ceriificate which
subjects the Consartiurn to fair value risks related Io this instrument The risk is not considersd
significant due to the short term to maturity of the investment certificate.

The Consortium believes that it is not exposed to significant foreign currency, credit or liquidity
risks arising from its financial instruments.

8. Reiated party transactions:
Dusing the year, the Consortium had the following related party transactions:

205 2014

! Maragement services 5 70,725 b 70,043
Administrative services 31,583 32,722

Training plan conrtracted services 35,000 -

As at March 31, 2015, the Consortium had a balance owing to related parties for lransachons
inciuded above of $9,111 (2014 - $10,022). During the year, the Consortium paid $102,308 (2014
- $102,785) for management and administrative services {o a company that in turn contracts the
serviges of the Secretary of the Consortium, The transactions are considered to be i the normal
caurse of operations and are measured at the exchange amourt, which is the amount of
consideration established and agreed to by the related parties

tn addition, $35,000 was paid during the year to a member of the Consortium for training plan
contracted services.

7. Budget data:

The budget data presented in these financial statements is based on the 2015 operating budget
appraved by the Board of Directors on Jantary 13, 2014,

DRAFT - May 14, 2015
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Trades Trainil_aungonsortimn of British Columbia

Notes ta Financial Statemerts (cortinued)

Year ended March 31, 2015

TRADES TRAINING CONSORTIUM OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

8 Expenses by object:

The following is & summary of expenses by abject:

DRAFT - May 14, 2015

2015 2014
Administration & 12,284 3 6.444
Bank charges 108 109
INSPIRE project 160,000 101,409
Professional fees 138,745 144,773
Training plan contrzcted services 193,673 131,188
Totai expenses $ 504819 & 383924

B
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 Trades Training Consortium of British Columbia

Closing Remarks

A dissolution and transition plan is in place to be executed towards a May 20, 2015 target end date.
All requisite authorities for the society’s members have been secured. An agreement has been
established between TTBC and BCIT which authorizes the transfer of remaining funds and other
assets 1o BCIT, who will manage the funds and assets within the defined mandate going forward. A
formal submission to the Registrar of Companies was submitted on May 11, 2015, and it is expected
that formal confirmation on the dissolution will be provided from the Registrar by mid June 20135,

2014/15 Annual Service Plan Report 18
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MINISTRY OF JOBS, TOURISM AND SKILLS TRAINING
AND MINISTER RESPONSIBLE FOR LABOUR
DECISION NOTE

Cliff #: 109546

Date: June 15, 2015

PREPARED FOR: Honourable Shirley Bond, Minister of Jobs, Tourism and Skills
Training and Minister Responsible for Labour

ISSUE: Minister approval of 2014/15 Destination BC (DBC) Annual Service Plan
Report is required by June 19, 2015,

BACKGROUND: As government organizations within the Government Reporting
Entity, Crown corporations are subject to the Budget Transparency and Accountability
Act (BTAA) and are required to prepare annual service plan reports to be made public
by the responsible Minister no later than August 31, 2015 the end of five months after
the end of the preceding fiscal year of the government organization.

After the 2014/15 DBC Annual Service Plan Report (ASPR) is approved by its Board of
Directors and Minister responsible, it wili be returned to Corporate Planning and
Priorities (CPP), Management Services Division. CPP is responsible for working with
the Crown Agency Resource Office (CARO) to suppart tabling the report and having it
published on the BC government and Crown websites. Submission of the approved
ASPR to the CARO is required by June 19, 2015.

DISCUSSION: CARO developed Crown corporation Annual Service Plan Report
Guidelines and Templates to support transparency, consistency and accountability
across Crown corporations reporting. The following requirements are new for 2014/15
annual service plan reports and refiect similar changes introduced for Ministry and
Crown corporation Service Plans tabled on February 17, 2015, including:

» Limit of 15 pages (excluding titie page, tabie of contents, financial reporting, and
appendices);

s Use of hyperlinks to reference existing documents;

s Elimination of photos and graphics;

» Requirement to identify and report on implementation of government direction,
per the Government Letters of Expectations (GLE) and the Taxpayer
Accountability Principles Addendum to the 2014 GLE;

+ Financial infformation is to be presented in bullet form or in footnotes; and,
Focus is on information pertinent to performance management and planning.
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Page 2

JTST staff provided guidance and assistance to DBC staff towards finalizing the
accompanying annual service plan report. The Assistant Deputy Minister, Tourism and
Small Business, reviewed and approved the 2014/15 DBC ASPR.

Management Services Division, CARO and Treasury Board Staff provide a further level
of review to confirm consistency with:

« BTAA requirements,

« Cabinet direction through the 2014 GLE and the Taxpayer Accountability
Principles;

e Government expenditures; and,

» CARO's Crown corporation Annual Service Plan Report Guidelines.

OPTIONS:
1. Approve 2014/15 Destination BC Annual Service Plan Report

2. Approve 2014/15 Destination BC Annual Service Plan Report with
changes

RECOMMENDATION: Option 1

ATTACHMENT: 2014/15 Destination BC Annuai Service Plan Report

Approved / Not Approved Date:

Comments:

Contact: Amie Foster, Manager Policy and Review, Management Services
Telephone: (250)356-2036  (778) 677-4473

Reviewed by

Dir; ED: ADM: KL DM: AM
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For more information on Destination BC contact:

12th Floor, 510 Burrard Street
Vancouver, BC
V6C 3AR

Phone: (604} 660-2861
Fax: (604) 660-3383

Email: ContactTourism(@DestinationBC .ca

or visit our website at
www.DestinationBC.ca
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Board Chair’s Message and Accountability Statement

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Destination British Columbia
(Destination BC), | am pleased to present our 2014/15 Annual Service
Plan Report that reflects Destination BC’s performance for the 12
mosnths ended March 3}, 2015. The content of this report was prepared
under the Board’s direction in accordance with the Budger
Transpavency and Accountability Act and the BC Reporting
Principles. During this performance period, the Corporation’s
operations have been consistent with the Taxpayer Accountability
Principles.

British Columbia’s tourism industry experienced another year of
strong growth in 2014, with a 5.3 per cent increase in international
visitor arrivals and increases in accommeodation occupancy and daily accommodation room rates across
most of the province. Destination BC played an important role in this success, marketing British
Columbia domestically and internationally as a coveted tourist destination while promoting the
devetopment, enhancement and growth of the tourism industry throughout the province,

Destination BC is focused on achieving results: growing the tourism sector through high impact,
innovative and creative marketing, enhancing the visitor expericace, developing and maintaining strong
collaborative relationships with tourism industry, communities, First Nations and cross-government
partners, and managing the Corporation with accountability, efficiency and effectiveness. One of
Destination BC’s key achievements, in our second year of operation, was the launch of our new
Corporate Strategy and Marketing Plan and the revitalized Super, Natural British Columbia® brand,
providing a consistent marketing platform for BC’s tourism system ta rally behind. Our revitalised brand
received world-wide attention, cuhminating in our brand video taking first prize at the 14™ Annual
International Tourism Fitm, Print and Multimedia competition at the March 2015 ITB (Internationale
Tourismus-Borse) Travel Trade Show in Berlin, the world’s leading travc] trade show. Other highlights of
the past year are outlined in the Report on Performance section of this report.

Destination BC’s financial position is sound, with an operating surplus of $101,000 in 2014/15.
Provincial government funding of $50.974 million was supplemented by $3.256 million in revenue
generated by the Corporation. Revenue generated by Destination BC exceeded forecasts, largely due to
the sale of BC Magazine, and was reinvested into strategic marketing initiatives.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to thank management and staff for their dedication and
contribution to the organization and its success. [ would also like to thank the Minister of Jobs, Tourism
and Skills Training and the Minister of State for Small Business and Tourism, along with their staff, for
their on-going support to our organization during 2014/15,

‘The Destination BC 2014715 Annual Service Plan Report compares the Corporation’s actual results to the
expected results identified in the 2074/15 - 2016/17 Service Plan. 1am accountable for those results as
reporied.

Rugre ———

Andrea Shaw
Board Chair

2014/15 Annual Service Plan Repori 3
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Destination BC

Purpose of the Organization

Tourism is a critical sector within BC’s economy. In 2013, the tourism industry generated $13.9

billion in revenue, an increase of 3.6 per cent over 2012 and a 44 per cent increase since 2003, In
addition, tourism contributed $7.3 billion to provincial GDP and employed over 132,000 people.
The tourism industry also generates social and cultural benefits for all British Columbians.

The tourism sector is comprised of thousands of businesses hosting millions of consumers, some
of whom only visit once, while others visit many times. Destination BC, operating under the
Destination BC Corp. Act, plays a critical role in:

» maximizing long term industry growth by providing a unifying and consistent brand and
marketing strategy for the tourism sector that motivates traveliers from around the world to
visit and encourages British Columbia’s residents to travel within their province, and

¢ providing leadership and direction for the expansion and strengthening of British Columbia’s
tourism products and experiences, including aboriginal cultural tourism. Destination BC
delivers branding, marketing and destination development activities directly and through
contracted third parties, such as BC’s Regional Destination Marketing Organizations.

Gaining the FEdge. a Five-year Strategy for Tourism in British Columbia 2012-2016, the tourisin
sector’s strategy for Canada Starts Here: the BC Jobs Plan, gave the context for Destination
BC’s new Corporate Strategy and Marketing Plan and the revitalized Super, Natural British
Columbia® brand which were released on November 4, 2014.

Strategic Direction and Context

Strategic Direction

Destination BC’s strategy aligns with the Corporation’s mandate, articulated in the Destination
BC Corp. 4ct, and with its 2014/15 Government etter of Expectations, which outlined direction
that reinforced the Corporation’s mandate and identified strategic priorities for 2014/15.
Additionally, provineial public sector organizations in BC, including Destination BC, operate
under the government’s new Taxpayer Accountability Principles which strengthen
accountability, promote cost control and ensure the organizations operate in the best interest of
taxpayers.

Strategic Context

In 2014/15 Destination BC made a number of organizational changes in order to better focus
resources on its core mandate. These included selling BC Magazine to a private sector publisher,
transitioning visitor services at the Vancouver International Airport to the Airpert Authority, and
winding down Destination BC’s acconunodation inspections and reservations programs.

The divestiture of these activities in 2014/15 will free-up resources for marketing the province
domestically and internationally as a tourist destination and promoting the development and
growth of the tourism industry in British Columbia in 2015/16 and beyond. In addition,
Destination BC developed new opportunities for collaboration with Destination Canada
(formerly known as the Canadian Tourism Commission} and Travel Alberta, and began the work

2014/15 Annual Service Plan Report 5
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of refining the role of BC’s Regional Destination Marketing Organizations.

Over the long tun, the growth of the tourism industry is the key indicator of success of the

Province’s tourism strategy and Destination BC. However, year to year, many factors, both

positive and negative, may affect the industry’s performance. In 2014/15 these included the

e depreciation of the Canadian dollar against the UJS dollar, which made BC more atiractively
priced for American visitors but increased the cost of advertising in the US;

o fall in the price of il which decreases the cost of travel to BC but negatively impacted
Alberta, one of our largest markets;

e increase in air capacity from Japan, which led to increased visitation from this market and
demonstrates the importance of adequate air access; and

e poor snow conditions at many ski resorts around the province, which adversely affected
industry performance in some areas of BC during the winter season.

Report on Performance

Destination BC completed all actions it was directed to in the 2014/15 Government Letter of

Expectations including:

s completing development and beginning implementation of a three-year marketing plan
aligned with Gaining the Edge,
executing marketing campaigns in British Columbia’s priority and emerging markets,

o leveraging funds from the private and public sectors to support marketing and development
intiatives,

e developing and publishing contracts with Regional Destination Marketing Organizations that
included clearly specified deliverables and performance measures upon which funding was
predicated,

» showcasing high potential products, such as ski and Aboriginal cultural tourism,

» planning to ensure the implcmentation of upgrades to visitor services starting in 2015/16, and

» reporting regularly to the Minister on progress toward Gaining the Edge goals, using key
performance indicators developed in 2013/14,

Destination BC’s Board signed a Taxpayer Accountability Principles addendum to the 2014/15
Government Letter of Expectations in September 2014, Destination BC evaluates all of its
activitics through the lens of the Taxpayer Accountability Principles in terms of cost
consciousness, accountabilily, appropriatc compensation, service, respect and integrity. For
example, in 2014/15 Destination BC:

s completed and posted a new, morc comprehensive Standards Of Condugt,

e informed, oriented and trained the Board and exccutive about the Taxpayer Accountability

« met regularly with the Minister, Deputy Minister and other Ministry executives,

s improved transparency and accountability to industry stakeholders and the public by
communicating its strategy and activities through the corporate website, Twitter and a new
monthly newsletter, and by posting contracts with BC’s Regional Pestination Marketing
Organizations,

s changed the business model for delivery of overseas marketing services in United Kingdom
and Japan to improve cost ellectiveness, and

2014/15 Annual Service Plan Report 6
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divested non-core activities.

A Strategic Engagement Plan will be finalized, in conjunction with the Ministry of Jobs, Tourism
and Skills Training, eatly in 2015/16 and Destination BC will work with the Ministry to develop
an Evaluation Plan with specific efficiency and performance measures as they pertain to the
organization’s health and performance against the Taxpayer Accountability Principles. The plan
will be implemented in 2015/16 and reported in the 2015/16 Annual Service Plan Report.

Goals, Strategies, Measures and Targets

As reported in detail below, Destination BC achieved or exceeded most of the 2014/15 targets set
in the 2014/15-2016/17 Service Plan, In addition to meeting performance targets, some of
Destination BC’s key achievements in 2014/15 were:

Bestination BC successfully launched the revitalized Super, Natural British Columbias
brand on November 4, 2014. The revitalized brand has been very well received in British
Caolumbia and internationally, For cxample, Destination BC’s brand video took first prize at
the 14™ Annual International Tourism Film, Print and Multimedia competition at the march
2015 [1B (Internationale Tourismus-Bérse) Travel Trade Show in Berlin, the world’s leading
travel trade show.

Destination BC successfully delivered the province’s winter marketing campaign, working
collaboratively with BC’s destination ski resorts and utilizing the revitalized brand. The
North America ski campaign achieved a 10 per cent increase in website visits over the
previous year.

Destination BC's new strategy led to the Corporation transitioning out of some lower timpact
business activities, frecing up $2 million to be reinvested in marketing British Columbia in
the future.

Destination BC’s @HelloBC Instagram account was recently included on Huffington Post
Canada’s list of ‘30 Canadian Instagram Accounts You Need To Follow’. The stunning
images on the account, which are curated by the Corporation’s social media team from
thousands of BC photos tagged every week with #exploreBC, put @HelloBC on this exciting
list. Use of #exploreBC on Instagram tepped 350,000 in 2014.

Destination BC launched “The Wild Within Virtual Reality Experience’, using Oculus Rift
technology, an interactive, three-dimensional video, to market Rritish Columbia to the
domestic and international travel trade and travel media. Destination BC was the first
destination marketing organization in North America to use virtual reality to promote the
destination. The too} has received widespread and positive media coverage.

Destination BC completed its component of the government directed, and Ministry of Jobs,
Tourism and Skills Training led, plan to invest $3 million per year over 3 years in visitor
services and rest stops, starting in 2015/16.

Destination BC held over 20 formal consultation meetings with community, regional and
industry stakeholders on the new corporate strategy, revitalised brand and marketing
programs, including the proposed new approach to co-op marketing, in communities across
the province. The consultation was designed to enhance alignment of provincial, focal and
sector marketing efforts.

Destination BC held province-wide consultations with visitor centres, chambers of commerce
and other community tourism stakehclders to develop a forward-looking visitor services

2014/15 Annual Service Plan Report 7
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strategy that will deliver information and services to visitors when and where they need
them, through their preferred commumcations channels.

s Destination BC adopted Destination Canada’s _Explorer Quotient” consumer segmentation
tool and has made it available, at no cost, to all BC tourism indusiry stakeholders. Adoption
of the EQ scgmentation will lcad to greater alignment between national, provincial,
community and industry marketing strategies, amplifying the impact of taxpayer and private
dollars spent marketing British Columbia.

In the following section, targets for 2014/15, 2015/16 and 2016/17, from the 2014/13-2016/17
Service Plan, are reported. Some of the targets for 2015/16 and 2016/17 were subsequently
revised in Destination BC’s 2015/16 - 2017/18 Service Plan.

Goal 1: Attract visitors to increase tourism industry revenue.

Strategy

Deploy a combination of media relations, travel trade and consumer direct marketing activitics to
connect consumers to travel information and products through the channel of their choice.

Performance Measure 1.1; Number of visits to Destination BC consumer websites.

Performance 2011712 | 2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17
Measure Actual Actual Actual Target Actual Target Target
Number of visits NA NA 8.5 83 9.1 8.6 8.9

to Destination million million million million million
BC consumer (Tareet

webygites. Exceeded)

Data Sousce: Destination BC

Discussion:

To attract more visitors and contribuie to the Province’s goal of increasing tourism revenue,
Destination BC works to increase potential visttors’ awareness, interest and sense of urgency to
visit British Columbia and then facilitates purchases by connecting visitors directly, or through
third partics, to BC’s tourism products and services.

The number of visitors to Destination BC’s consumer websites, including HelloBC.com and all
the international language websites, is a key measure of the success of marketing activities
designed to move consumers dowmt the path {o purchasing a trip to, and throughout, British
Columbia. Providing online content, which provides both inspiration and information, is crucial
to enabling potential tourists to make plans to visit the province. The websites are designed to
make it easy for consumers to explore BC’s many tourism products and services, connect with
tourism businesses and finally, to make the decision to visil. The websites reflect the [ull range
of tourism opportunities across BC, helping to ensure that communities across BC experience
increased visitation and the benefits tourism can bring. Destination BC’s 2015/16 — 2017/18
Service Plan includes new performance measures for this goal, reflecting the new Carporate
Strategy and Marketing Plan.

2014/15 Annual Service Plan Report 8
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Goal 2: Remarkable Guest Experiences — Assist industry to develop, deliver and
maintain a world-class guest experience.

Strategies

e Improve the guest experience through integrated visitor information services.
o  Assist tourism businesses to meet and exceed guest needs and expectations.

Performance Measure 2.1: Visitor Centre Network satisfaction with programs and

services. o
Performance 2011/12 | 2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 20141’15‘-] 2015/16 | 2016/17
Meastre Actual Actual Actual Target Actual Target | Target
Visitor Centre NA NA 67% 97% 96% 97% 97%
Network (Rated

! satisfaction either

* with or good, very
with pmgrams good or
and services. | excellent)
Data Source: Destination BC and third party inde‘péﬁdent research firm.
Performance Measure 2.2: WorldHost» program participants.
Performance 2011712 | 2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17
Measure Actual Actual Actual Target Actual Target ‘Target
WorldHest (1) NA NA 13,348 13,000 | 14,726" | 14,000 15,000
program (Target
participants. : Exceeded)

Data Source; Destination BC and third party independent research firm.
(1) WaorldHost offers a suite of courses that improve customer service.
(2) One time increase due to 20135 Canada Winter Games training,

Discussion;

The delivery of outstanding experiences for guests from around the world, including BC
residents travelling within the province, 1s critical to achieving higher revenues via increased
spending, longer stays, repeat visitors and recommendations (through word of mouth and social
media). The responsibility for outstanding experiences lies largely with tourism businesses,
supported by visitor centres and servicing. In 2014/15, Destination BC coniributed to enhancing
the overall quality of the guest experience throughout BC by supperting community visitor
centres to provide information to visitors and by providing tools, education and training

programs, such as WorldHost training, for tourism businesses and organizations. The

satisfaction of visitor centres with Destination BC support programs and services was essentially
unchanged from 2013/14, while WorldHost training targets for 2014/15 were exceeded, partly
due to training for the 2015 Canada Winter Games in Prince George. As a result of the new
corporate strategy and marketing plan s, Destination BC is developing new programs to enhance
the guest experience and has developed direct measures of the quality of visitor services and
guest experiences, which are outlined in the new 2015/16 —2017/18 Service Plan.

2014/15 Annual Service Plan Report
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Goal 3: Strong Relationships — Engage and collaborate with key industry

stakeholders, partners and governments to align and focus collective tourism
marketing efforts.

Strategies

» Increase the amount of private and public sector funding contributed to joint marketing
initiatives between the BC industry and Dcstination BC.

¢ Strengthen relationships with key industry stakeholders and cross-government partners.

Performance Measure 3.1: Private and public sector funds leveraged by Destination BC co-
operative marketing programs.

2012/13

2013/14

Performance. 20111 2

Measure Actual Actual Actual
Privatc and NA NA $6.90
public sector million

funds
leveraged by
Destination BC
co-operative
marketing

| Programs.

2014/15 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17
Target | Actwal | Target | Target
$7.25 $7.10 $7.60 $8.00
million million million million
(Target not
Achieved)

Data Sources: Destination BC

Performance Measure 3.2: Stakeholder satisfaction with Destination BC programs and

Performance 2011712 | 2012/13 | 2013/14
Measure Actual Actual Actual
Stakeholder NA NA 6.09
satisfaction (out of 10)
with

Destination BC
programs and
services. (1)

2014/15 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17
Target | Actual | Target Target
Maintain 6.62 Maintain | Maintain
or (Target or or
improve | Exeeeded) | improve | improve
over over over
baseline baseline | baseline

Data Sources: Destination BC and third party independent research firm,

[

(1) Tourism businesses comprisc one of the six strata whose satisfaction is tracked through the corporate stakeholder
survey. Scores of the other strata are reported elsewhere and used to inform corporate planning and program

evaluation.

Discussion:

A key objective of Destination BC is to increase collaboration, coordination and alignment in
marketing and destination development activitics across the BC tourism industry. One approach
that Destination BC takes to achieve this is to use its marketing funds to leverage and align
private and public sector funding. After consulting with stakeholders, Destination BC delayed
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the roliout of a new co-op marketing program until 2016/17, hence delaying the anticipated
increase in funds leveraged by Destination BC programs. Future targets were adjusted
appropriately in Destination BC’s new 2015/16 - 2017/18 Service Plan.

To ensure that Destination BC delivers programs and activities that provide value for tourism
sector stakeholdcers, an independent third-party survey of industry stakeholders is conducted at
the end of each fiscal year. During 2014/15, Destination BC engaged in broad consultation with
industry stakcholders on a range of programs and announced significant changes o some non-
core business areas. It is encouraging to see the substantial increase in stakeholder satisfaction as
Destination BC began implementation of its new corporate strategy, shifting its resources to have
a greater impact for British Columbia’s tourism industry.

Goal 4: Business Efficiency — Conduct our business efficiently in a changing
environment.

Strategy

Ensure cost effective provision of support services that meet business requirements,

Performance Measure 4.1: Percentage of Destination BC funds allocated to support
services.

Performance | 2011/12 | 2012/13 | 2013/14 | 201415 | 2014/15 20?’ L1 2016117
Measure Actual Actual Actual | Target Actual . Target
Target
, Percentage of NA NA 9.0% <10% 8.5% <1(% <10%
| Destination BC {Restated (Target
* funds altocated from Exceededcz)) !
to support 4.6%"))
services.

Data Source: Destination BC Annual Financial Statements.

(1) Effective April 1, 2014, Shared Services BC commenced charging Destination BC for facilities and technology
services This charge was offset by a budget transfer from Shared Services BC to Destination BC. Actual 2013/14
expenditures have been restated to include expenditures made by Shared Services BC that year on behalf of
Destination BC.

(2) This % includes an allocation for the costs of staff performing corporate human resource functions. These costs
were budgeted and charged to Research, Strategy and Communications.

Discussion:

Destination BC must maxiniize funds for tourisn: marketing through innovation and the careful
management of human and financial resources. Monitoring corporate support costs provides an
important indicator of cost containment, conformity to the Taxpayer Accountability Principles,
and informs the business operations decisions of senior management and the Board of Dircctors.
Support services costs are defined to include accounting operations, facilities, administration,
human resources, the Chief Executive Officer’s office and Board cxpensces and are measured as a
percentage of total annual expenditures. Lowering support services costs increases the funds
avaitable for tourism marketing.
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Goal 5: Our People — Develop and empower a team that is engaged, strategic,
responsive and innovative.

Strategy

Attract, retain and develop highly skilled and engaged people.

Performance Measure 5.1: Employee engagement.

Performance l 2011412 | 2012713 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17
Measure . Actual | Actual | Actual | Target | Actual | Target | Target |
Employee NA NA 3.53 Maintain 3.91 Maintain | Maintain
engagement. (out of or (Target or or
3) improve | Exeeeded) | improve | improve
[$: 1 on on
baseline baseline | baselinc

Data Source: The annoal Einpl-dirce Engagement Survey is executed by an independent third party research firm and
takes place at the end of each fiscal year.

Discussion:

The long-term success of Destination BC depends on talented and engaged employees dedicated
to the success of the organization and its goals. The annual evaluation of employee satisfaction
and engagement assists the Board of Directors and senior management in identifying
opportunities to build employee engagement and ensure the creation and maintenance of a stable
and thriving workplace. Destination BC underwent significant internal change during 2014/15,
releasing a new strategy, winding up a number of non-core busincsses and restructuring the
organization. While challenging, this created a vision and clarity for staff and contributed to the
increase in employee engagement. Job satisfaction rosc and most employees reported being
inspired by Destination BC to do their best work. The 2014/15 survey identified a number of
areas that the organization will focus on in 2015/16 as it continues to improve cmployee

engagement.
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Financial Report

Management Discussion and Analysis

2014/15 was the second year of operations for Destination BC. Following an operating surplus of
$209,000 in 2013/14, the Corporation had a 2014/15 operating surplus of $101,000 for an
accumulated surplus of $310,000.

With the completion of the Corporate Stratcgy and Marketing Plan during the year, budgets were
reallocated among the core business areas to better achieve corporatc goals and objectives and to
fund priority initiatives required during the year. This contributed to the variances in the table
below between actual results and Service Plan Budget.

On the revenue side, Deferred Government Contributions were lower by $318,000 as these
coniributions directly offset amortization costs, which were lower due to delays in capital
expenditures in order to match the new corporate strategy. Other revenue was $204,000 higher
than budget. However, excluding the one-time recognition of deferred revenue of $875,000 as a
result of the sale of BC Magazine, there was a deerease in revenue in the amount of $671,000.
This decrease was duc to divestments of non-core business lines such as BC Magazine and YVR
Visitor Centre, as well as lower fees for the listings program, and decreases in publications
advertising and reservation revenues. The net cost savings achieved due to divestments were
altocated to other priority areas such as markcting,

On the expenditure side, Global Marketing’s increase over budget of $2,446,000 is mainly due to
the new brand development costs and other priority marketing initiatives. This was offset by a
decrease in spending in Destination and Industry Development of $2,112,000, as well using the
net cost savings achicved through the divesture of non-core business lines.

Research, Strategy and Communications and Corporate Services budget variances essentially
offset each other which were due to the transfer of Corperate Communications from Corporate
Services to Research, Strategy and Communications.

In 2014/15, funds transferred from Government to Destination BC increased $2.084 million to

offset Destination BC’s facilities and information technology services costs provided through
Shared Services BC.
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Financial results for the year ended March 31, 2015 and financial overview for 2015/16 to
2016/17:

201213 | 2013/14 | 201415 | 2014/15 | 2014/15 | 2004/15 | 201374~ | 2015/16 | 2016717
$ miltions Actual™ | Actual | Bumdget | Revised | Actoal | Variance™ . 14715 Budget | Budpet
i Budget | Variance B
Operating Revenue (8000}
Government transfers NA 48,890 50,974 50974 50574 0060 | 2084 51.024 21.054
Deforred govemment NA {.406 0760 0.760 0.442 {0.318} . 0,036 667 751
contribulions : : :
Other revenne NA ] 3347 3.052 2652 325 0.204 {0,091} 960 860
Teotal Revenue NA 52.643 54.786 54.386 4672 1 . (0.114) 2029 51.651 ] 52,765
Operating Expeases {($000)
(ilobal Matkcting MNA 25844 26.213 27447 28.659 {2.446} {2.815) 31.195 31.225
Destination and "~ MA ©22.220 21.211 19.509 18.999 Sl 3.22]. 14.336 14336
Industry Development _
Research, Strategy and ‘NA 1.152. 1.381 2094 2,044 {0.663) (0.892) 1.893 1.893
Comunumcations _ . .
Corporale Services "~ NA 2812 5221 4576 1427 0,794 {1.615) 4.560 4,560
Amortization NA 0.406 0.760 0.760 0442 | 0318 {0.036) 667 751
Total Expenses | NA | 52434 | 54786 |  54.386 54.571 0215 | @B | s2e51 52.765
i Net Tncome from © NA | 62090  0.000 0.000 0101 | 0101 |  (0.108) 0.000 0.000 |
© Operations . B . )
Capital Expenditures NA 2314 1.300 1.300 0,475 1.825 ) 1.839 TBD TRHD
Total Liabilities NA. 12.530 10,952 10.952 12.993 (2.041) {0.463) 10,285 9.534 .
Accumulated Surplus /| - NA 0209 0.000 209 4310 0.310 0.101 209 209
Retained Earnings 1 .

_-{“i') Destination BC commenced operatiohs on April 1, 2013,
(2) Acmal vs. Original Budget
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Management’s Report
Management's Responsibliity for the Destination BC Corp. Financial Statements

The Destination BC Corp. financial statements have been prepared by management in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and the integrity and objectivity
of these statements are management's responsibitity. Management s also responsible for alf of
the notes to the Destination 8C Corp. financial statements and schedules, and for ensuring that
this information is cansistent, where appropriate, with the Infarmation contained in the
Destination BC Corp financial statements, A ssmmary of the significant accounting policies are
described in Nate 2 to the Destination BC Corp. financial statements, The preparation of
financiat statements necessarily involves the use of estitmates based on management’s
judgment, particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be
finalized with certainty until future periods

Management is also responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal controls
to provide reasanable assurance that refiable financial infarmation is produced. The internal
controls are designed te provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions
are properly aulhorized and recorded in compliance with lepistative and regulatory
requirements, and reliable financial information is available on a timely basls for preparation of
the financial statements. Destination BC Corp.’s system of internal controls places reliance on
certain of the Minlstry of Jobs, Tourism and Skills Training internal controls, particudarly with
respect to the processing and recerding of transactions. Destination BC Corp. has received
representation from the ministry regarding the effectiveness of these controls.

The Board of Directors is respansible for ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities for
financiaf reporting and internal control, and exercises these responsibitities through the Board.
The Board reviews interna! Destination BC Corp. financial statements on a quarterly basis and
external audited Destination BC Corp, financial statements yearly. The Board also discusses any
significant financial reporting or internal control matters prior to their approval of the
Destination BC Corp. financial statements.

The externat auditors, Office of the Auditor Generat of British Columbia, conduct an independent
examination, in accordance with Canadian auditing standards, and express their opinion an the
Destination BC Corp. financial statements. The external auditors have full and (ree access to
financial management of Destination BC Corp. and meet when required. The accompanying
Auditor's Report outlines their responsibilities, the scope of their examination and their opinion
on the Bestination BC Corp. financial statements,

On behalf of Destination BC Corp.

Dean Skinner
Chief Executive Officoer Chief Financial Officer

May 13, 2015
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Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Destination BC Corp., and
To the Minister of Jobs, Tourism and Skills Training, Province of British Columbia

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Destination BC Corp. (“the
entity”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2015,
and the statcment of opcerations, statement of remeasurement gains and losses,
statement of changes in net financial debl and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in
accordance with the accounting requirements of section 23.1 of the Budget
Transparency and Accountability Act of the Province of British Columbia, and for
such internal contro! as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are frec from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or crror.

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements bascd on my
audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
auditing standards. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requircinents
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonablc assurance about whether the
financial statements are {ree from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The proccdures selected

depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of

material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purposc of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policics
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used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the presentation of the financial statements.

In my view, the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements of Destination BC Corp. for the year ended
March 31, 2015, are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the
accounting

requirements of section 23.1 of the Budger Transparency and Accountability Act of the
Province of British Columbia.

Emphasis of Matter

Without modifying my opinion, I draw attention to Note 2a to the financial statements
which discloses that the accounting requirements of section 23.1 of (he Budget
Transparency and Accountability Act of the Province of British Columbia are in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards except in regard to the
accounting treatment of government transfers.

Note 16 to the financial statements discloses the impact of these differences.

e
Victoria, British Columbia Russ Jones, CPA, FCA
June 2, 2015 Deputy Auditor General
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Audited Financial Statements

Destination BC Corp.
Statement of Flnanclal Posltlon
[$000s]
March 21, March 31,
Note 2015 2014
Financiat assets
Cath amd cash equivalerits 3 10412 £,394
Acoounts receivable q 526 577
Due from Ministry of Jobs, Tourtsm and Skilis Tralning 0 4,547
10,938 10,518
Llabllitlas
Actoim's payable and acorned llablifithes 5 2,749 100
Due to Ministry of Iabs, Tourism and Skifis Tralnlng 5,354 ’ 1]
Due ta the Putfic Sorvice Agency a3p 74
Defarred revenue : 7 2 112
Peferred capital contributions 8 . 2,952 3,394
12,993 12,53¢
Mat financial deby - {2,055) (2,012)
HNon-financial assets
Tanglhle capltal assats L 1,841 1,508
Prepaid expenses 76 278
Seturity depostis ' 58 58
. 2,375 2,292
Accurnulated surphus i 320 2%
Accumalated surplus 1 comprised of:
Agcuraulated operating surplus 310 209
Actumulated remeasurement gaing 10 23,
320 230
Contractual obiigations ig

The accompanying noles arc an inlegral part of these Destinatlon 8C Corp. financlal statements,

Shenature m\ Signature
A

ndrea Shaw, Doard Chair Lzird Miller, Chalr, flnance & Audit Committea
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Destination BC Corp.
Statement of Operations

[$000s]
Budget March 31, March 21,
Noate {Note 15} 2015 2014

Revenues
Government transfers iz S0,974 50,974 48,890
Program revenue 17 3,052 3,149 3,321
Interest income 0 73 26
Gains on Foreign Exchange 0 34 0
Capital contribution & 760 442 _A0E

54,786 54,672 52,643
Expenses 13
Glohal Marketing 26,213 28,659 25,844
Destination and Industry Development 21,211 18,999 22,220
Research, Strategy and Communications 1,381 2,014 1,i52
Corporate Services 14 5,221 4,427 2,812
Amortization 760 442 406

54,786 54,571 52,434
Annual operating surphus 0 101 209
Accumulated operating surplus, beginning of year 209 209 o
Accumulated operating surplus, end of year 209 310 208

Destination BC Corp.

Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses

[$000s]

Cpening balance
Unreatized gains on foreign bank accounts

Amount of foreign exchange reclassified to the
Statement of Operations

Accumulated remeasurement gains, end of year

March 31, WMarch 31,
2015 2014

21 0

23 21

{34} 0

Tha accompanying notes are an integral part of these Destination BC Corp. financial statements.
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Destination BC Carp.
Statement of Change in Net Financial Debt

[$000s}]
Budget March 31, March 31,
{Note 16) 2015 o __2014

Annual operating surplus 0 101 209
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (1,486) (475) [2,314)
amortization of tangible capital assets 760 442 406
(726) (33) {1,908}

Acquisition of prepaid expenses 0 {376) {276}
Use of prepaid expenses 0 276 21
Acquisition of security deposit 0 0 [58)
0 {100} {313}

Effect of remeasurement gains (losses) for the year o 4y 21
Increase in net financial debt _{728) {43) {1,991}
Net financia! debt at beginning of year 2012 {2,012} (21}
Net financiai debt at end of year _ {2,738} {2,055} {2,012}

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Destination 8C Corp. financial statements.
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Destination BC Corp.
Statermnent of Cash Flows

Opuerating transactions
Surplus for the year
Cash and non-cash items inciuded in surplus:
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Deferrad capital contributions — povernment
Effect of remeasurement gains {lossas) for the year
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Prepaid expenses
Security deposits
Due t¢/from Ministry of Jobs, Tourism and Skills Training
Due to Public Service Agency

Cash used in operations
Capital transactions
Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets

Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Destination BC Corp. financial statements.
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[5000s]

21

March 31, March 31,
2015 2614

101 209
442 4086
{442} (406)
{11} 21
51 {577}
{3,341} 7.090
{1,170) 1,172
{100} {255)
0 {58)
9,901 {768)
62 874
5,493 1,708
{475) {2,314)
5,018 5,394
5,394 3]
10,412 5,394
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1. Nature of Operations

Destination BC Corp. (the Corporation} is a provincial Crown corporation initially created under the
BC Business Carporations Act on November 2, 2012, and subsequently confirmed under the
Destination BC Corp. Act, which received Royal Assent in March 2013.

The Corporation reports to the Legislative Assembly through the Ministry of Jobs, Tourism and Skills
Training. The accumulated operating surplus includes 1 issued share of Destination BC Corp., value
$1, which is held by the Province of British Columbia.

The purposes of the Corporation are to:
a) market British Columbia domestically, nationally and internationally as a tourist destination;
h) promote the development and growth of the tourism industry in British Columbia to increase
revenue and employment in, and the economic benefits generated by, the industry;
c) provide advice and recommendations to the minister on tourism-related matters; and
d} enhance public awareness of tourism and its economic value to British Columbia.

The Corporation commenced operations on April 1, 2013.

The Corporation is exempt from federal and provincial income taxes but is subject to the federal
goods and services tax and provincial sales tax.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a. Basis of accounting

These Destination BC Corp. financial statements are prepared by management in
accordance with Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountabifity Act (BTAA)
of the Province of British Columbia which requires that financial statements be prepared
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards except in regard to
accounting for government transfers as presented in Note 18.

b. Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes amounts that are directly
related to the acquisition, design, construction, development, improvement or
betterment of the assets.

The cost, less residual value, of the tangible capital assets, excluding land, is amortized on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Furniture and equipment 5 vyears
Websites, hardware and software 5 years
Photocopiers 6 years

Assets under development are not amortized until the asset is available for productive
use.

Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate that they no longer
contribute to Destination BC Corp.’s ability to provide goods and services, or when the
value of future econamic benefits associated with the tangible capital assets are {ess than
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their net bock value. The net write-downs are accounted for as expenses in the
Destination BC Corp. statement of operations.

Intangible assets, such as copyrights, trademarks, etc. are not recognized in these
financial statements.

c. Employee future benefits

i.  The employees of Destination BC Corp. belong to the Public Service Pension Plan,
which is a multi-employer joint trustee plan. This plan is a defined benefit plan,
providing a pension on retirement based on the member’s age at retirement,
length of service and highest earnings averaged over five years. Inflation
adjustments are contingent upon available funding.

The joint trustee board of the plan determines the required plan contributions
annually.

Destination BC Corp.’s contribution to the plan is recorded as an expense for the
year.

ii.  The costs of insured benefits reflected in these financial statements are the
employer’s portion of the insurance premiums owed for coverage of employees
during the period.

iii.  The cost of non-vesting sick leave benefits are determined using management’s
best estimate of salary escalation, accumulated sick days at retirement, long-term
inflation rates and discount rates.

d. Prepaid expenses
Prepaid expenses include items which are charged to expenses over the periods expected
to benefit from them,

e. Revenue recognition
Revenues are recognized in the period in which the transactions or events occurred that
gave rise to the revenues. All revenues are recorded on an accrual basis, except when the
accruals cannot be determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their
estimation is impracticable.

Government transfers are recognized as revenues when the transfer is authorized and
any eligibility criteria are met, except to the extent that transfer stipulations give rise to
an obligation that meets the definitian of a liability, including capital contributions which
are recognized as revenue to match the amortization expense in accordance with Section
23.1 of the BTAA. Transfers are recognized as deferred revenue when transfer
stipulations give rise to a liability. Transfer revenue is recognized in the statement of
operations as the stipulation liabilities are settled.

Revenue related to fees or services received in advance of the fee being earned or the
service is performed is deferred and recognized when the fee is earned or service
performed,
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f. Expenses
Expenses are reported on an accrual basis. The cost of all goods consumed and services
received during the year is expensed.

Transfers include entitlements, grants and transfers under shared cost agreements.
Grants and transfers are recorded as expenses when the transfer is authorized and
eligibility criteria have been met by the recipient.

g. Foreign currency translation
Foreign currency transactions are translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of
the transactions.

Monetary assets and Habilities included in the fair value measurement category
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Canadian dollars at the exchange
rate prevailing at the financial statement date. Unrealized foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognized in the statement of remeasurement gains and losses. in the period
of settlement, realized foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in the statement
of operations, and the cumulative amount of remeasurement gains and losses is reversed
in the statement of remeasurement gains and losses.

h. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are entirely funds in bank accounts and therefore subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value, other than potential exchange gains ar losses on the
overseas bank accounts as described in Note 11.

i. Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at cost or amortized cost.

j. Measurement uncertainty
The preparation of Destination BC Cerp. financial statements reguires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of the Destination
BC Corp. financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues
and expenses during the period. ltems requiring the use of significant estimates include
the usefu! life of capital assets, rates for amortization, provision for doubtful accounts.

Estimates are based on the best information available at the time of preparation of the
Destination BC Corp. financial statements and are reviewed annually to reflect new
information as it becomes available. Measurement uncertainty exists in these Destination
BC Corp. financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
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3. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Destination BC Corp. had unrestricted cash consisting of the foilowing:

{in $ thousands)

_March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Royal Bank of Canada 10,310 4,994
Lloyds of London 16 180
Bank of Tokyo 86 220

Total 10,412 5,394

4. Accounts Receivable
(in § thousands)
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Accounts receivahble 533 590
Less provision for doubtful accounts (7) (13)
Net Accounts Receivable 526 577

5. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
(in S thousands)

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Accounts payables and accrued liabilities 3,294 6,686
Accrued vacation pay o 455 404
Total 3,749 7,090

6. Employee Future Benefits

Destination BC Corp. and its employees are subject to the Public Service Act and benefits are
managed through the Public Service Agency. Destination BC makes contributions to the PSA who
administers payment of benefits to employees to whom the act applies.

Other employee benefits available to employees of Destination BC Corp. are:
a. Retirement benefits

The employees of Destination BC Corp. belong to the Public Service Pension Plan {the “Plan”), which
is @ multi-employer joint trustee plan. The Public Service Pension Board of Trustees, representing
Plan members and employers, is responsibie for overseeing the management of the Plan, including
investment of the assets and administration of benefits. Basic pension benefits are based on a
formula. The Plan has about 56,000 active plan members, 42,000 retired plan members and 16,000
inactive members.

The latest actuarial valuation as at March 31, 2014, indicated a funding surplus of $194 million for
basic pension benefits. Employers participating in the Plan record their pension expense as the
amount of employer contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan
accounting). This is because the Plan records accrued liabilities and accrued assets for the Plan in
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aggregate with the result that there is no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation,

assets and cost to individual employers participating in the Plan.

No pension liability is included in the Destination BC Corp. financial statements.

Destination BC Corp.’s contribution of $667 thousand (2013/14 - $623 thousand) to the Plan was

expensed during the year.
b. Other employee future benefits

Workplace safety and insurance board obligations

Destination BC Corp. is an employer under the Workers Compensation Act part 3 {“Act”} and, as
such, assumes responsibility for the payment of all claims to its injured workers under the Act.

Destination BC Corp. does not fund these obligations in advance of disbursement.

7. Deferred Revenue
{in 5 thousands)

Balance Receipts Transferred Balance
April 13,2014  duringyear  to revenue March 31, 2015
Magazine Subscriptions 1,152 302 1,454 0
Miscellaneous 20 2 20 2
Total 1,172 304 1,474 2
(in $ thousands} o
Balance Receipts Transferred  Balance
_April 1,2013  duringyear  to revenue March 31, 2014
Magazine Subscriptions 0 1,883 731 1,152
Miscellaneous 0 20 0 20
Total 0 1,903 731 1,172

8. Deferred Capital Contribution

The deferred contribution consists of a capital contribution from the Province of British Columbia for
the purpose of acquiring capital assets. The amount recorded as revenue matches the amortization

expense for the year.
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9. Tangible Capital Assets

Furniture Websites, 2015
and hardware
. Total
equipment and software
Opening Balance 9 2,305 2,314
Opening adjustment 0 46 46
Additions 0 475 475
Disposals 0] 0 0
Closing balance L 9 2,826 2,835
Opening balance 4] 406 406
Opening adjustment 0 46 46
Amortization 1 441 442
Disposals 0 0 0
Closing balance 1 893 894
Net book value 8 1,833 1,941
Furniture Websites, 5014
and hardware
. Total
equipment and software
Opening Balance 0 0 0
Additions 9 2,305 2,314
Disposals 0 0 o
Closing balance 9 2,305 2,314
Opening balance 0 0 0
Amortization 0 406 406
Disposals 0 ¢ 0
Closing halance 0 406 406
Net book value 9 - 1,859 1,908

Cost at March 31, 2015 includes development of websites of $152 thousand (2013/14 - $319
thousand), and $299 thousand (2013/14 - $0) for a corporate financial system, which are considered
to he work in progress at year end.
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10. Contractual Obligations

Destination BC Corp. has entered into a number of contractual arrangements for the delivery of
services in the future, the development of assets, and property ieases. These contractual obligations
will become liabilities in the future when the terms of the contracts are met. Disclosure relates to

the unperformed portion of the contracts.

{in S thousands)

2016 2017 2018 2012 2020 Thereafter
Property leases 1,999 091 991 991 0 0
Other contractual
arrangements 15,293 1,442 24 24 12 12
Total contractual
obligations 021,292 2,433 1,015 1,015 12 12

11. Risk Management

Destination BC Corp. is exposed to certain risks from the entity’s financial instruments. Qualitative

and quantitative analysis of the significant risks from Destination BC’s financial instruments is
provided below by type of risk.

i) Foreign exchange risk

The carrying amount of Destination BC Corp.’s foreign currency denominated financial assets

at March 31, 2015 is $227 thousand {2013/14 - 5435 thousand).

The sensitivity of Destination BC Corp.'s operating surplus {deficit) and remeasurement gains
{losses) due to changes in foreign exchange rates between the Canadian dollar and US dollar,

British pound, and Japanese yen can be summarized as follows:

A 5% change in exchange rates (SUS, GBP, 1Y) will have a cumulative positive or negative

impact on the remeasurement gains or losses of CON511 thousand.
i) Interest rate risk

The sensitivity of Destination BC Corp.’s operating surplus (deficit) and accumulated

remeasurement gains (losses) due to changes in the interest rate is minimal as it carries no

debt.
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12. Government Transfers

(in $ thousands)
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Revenue:

Province of British Columhbia 50,974 48,890

Expenses:

Shared cost agreements 11,759 14,598

Municipalities and local governments 1,936 1,907

Service providers 284 424

General 1 150
Total government transfers 13,980 17,078

13. Expenses
The following is a summary of expenses by category:

{in $ thousands)
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Government transfers - note 12 13,980 17,079
Advertising 10,315 8,085
Salaries and wages 8,057 7,067
Professional services 8,029 7,044
infarmation systems 3,633 3,857
Office and business 3,381 3,473
Rental expenditures 2,317 337
Employee benefits 1,920 1,645
Support services 1,142 1,317
Travel 681 541
Amortization 442 106
Other 331 a9
Materials and supplies 271 386
Board expenses 71 98
Total expenses 54,571 - 52,434

As of March 31, 2015, Destination BC Corp.’s actual expenses did not exceed its legislated expenses
limit.
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14. Related Party Transactions

Destination BC Corp. is related through common ownership to all Province of British Columbia
ministries, agencies and Crown corporations. Transactions with these entities considered to be in the
normal course of operations, are recorded at the exchange amounts, predominantly under
prevailing trade terms.

Destination BC Corp. had the following transactions with the government and other government
controlled organizations:

(in $ thousands)
March 31, March 31,

2005 2014
Grants from the Province* 50,974 48,890
Amounts paid to the Ministry of Jobs, Tourism and Skills
Training 1,000 1,000
Amounts paid or due to the Ministry of Finance:
Payroll 8,969 8,712
Building Occupancy Costs 2,274 0
Information Technology Services 719 0
Legal Services 254 87
Rent for UK office 108 75
Woarld Host Online Workshop 105 0
Postage, supplies, printing 93 80
Audit Fees 60 8]
B(C Stats 48 0
Corporate Communications 12 0
Insurance Premiums 11 0
Other {including bank charges) 6 3

*Grants from the Province increased by $2,084 thousand as funds were transferred by Shared
Services BC to Destination BC Corp. related to facilities and technology services for which Shared
Services BC commenced charging Destination BC Corp. effective April 1, 2014. These new expenses,
which are offset by the funds transferred, are predominantly charged against the Corporate Services
division and therefore result in the large increase in expenses between 2013/14 and 2014/15.

Destination BC Corp., and its predecessor organizations, has historically entered info a contract with
the Kicking Horse Mountain Resort to operate a visitor centre. During the previous year, a new
Director was appointed to the Board of Destination BC Corp., who is an officer of the company which
owns the Resort.
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15. Budgeted Figures

Budgeted figures from the 14/15 Service Plan have been provided for comparison purposes. During
the year the Board of Directars approved re-allocations of the divisional budgets for a more accurate
presentation.

The following adjustments were made:

{in S thousands)

Global Marketing 1,234
Destination and Industry Development {1,702}
Research, Planning and Evaluation 713
Corporate Services {645)
Program Revenue 400
0

16. Impact of accounting for Government Transfers in accordance with Section 23.1
of the Budget Transparency and Accountability Act:

As noted in the significant accounting policies note 2(a), Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency

and Accountability Act and Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2001 requires Destination BC to

recognize government transfers for capital assets into revenue on the same hasis as the related

amaortization expense. As these transfers do not contain stipulations that create a liability, Canadian
public sector accounting standards would require these grants to be fully recognized into revenue.

The impact of this difference on the financial statements of Destination BC is as follows:

* Year ended March 31, 2015 —increase in revenue and annual surplus by $39 thousand.
¢ Asat March 31, 2015 —increase in accumulated surplus by $1,947 thousand and a decrease
in deferred capital contributions by $1,947 thousand.

17. Program Revenue
Destination BC Corp. earned the following program revenues during the year:

~__{in S thousands)
March 31,2015 March 31, 2014

BC Magazine 1,799 1,324
Reservations, commission and listings 799 1,362
Merchandise sales, royalties and other 293 248
WorldHost 258 387
Total program revenue 3,149 3,321
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18. Comparative Figures

Certain comparative figures, have been restated to conform to current year’s presentation.
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Appendix A: Additional Information

Corporate Governance

Destination BC is governed by a Board of Directors that is responsible to the Minister of Jobs,
Tourism and Skills Training lor the implementation of government direction. The Board’s direction
is implemented by management, which carries out the day-to-day opcrations of the Corporation under
the supervision of the Chief Executive Officer. For more information on Corporate Governance,
please see our web pages on Leadership and Touwrism Marketing Committee.

Organizational Overview

For an over view of Destination BC please see Destination BC"s Organizational Overview
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MINISTRY OF JOBS, TOURISK AND SKILLS TRAINING
AND MINISTER RESPONSIBLE FOR LABOUR
DECISION NOTE

Cliff # 109547
X Ref: 109548

Date: June 11, 2015

PREPARED FOR: Minister of Jabs, Tourism and Skills Training and Minister
Responsible for Labour

ISSUE: Minister approval of 2014/15 Industry Training Authority (ITA) Service Plan
Report is required by June 19, 2015.

BACKGROUND: As government organizations within the Government Reporting
Entity, Crown corporations are subject to the Budget Transparency and Accountability
Act (BTAA) and are required to prepare annual service plan reports to be made public
by the responsible Minister no later than August 31, 2015 or the end of five months after
the end of the preceding fiscal year of the government organization.

After the 2014/15 ITA Annual Service Plan Report (ASPR) is approved by its Board of
Directors and Minister responsible, it will be returned to Corporate Planning and
Priorities (CPP), Management Services Division. CPP will work with the Crown Agency
Resource Office (CARO) to support tabling the report and having it published on the BC
government and Crown websites. Submission of the approved ASPR to the CARO is
required by June 19, 2015.

DISCUSSION: CARQ developed Crown corporation Annual Service Plan Report
Guidelines and Templates to support transparency, consistency and accountability
across Grown corporations reporting. The following requirements are new for 2014/15
annual service plan reports and reflect similar changes introduced for Ministry and
Crown corporation Service Plans tabled on February 17, 2015, including:

« Limit of 15 pages (excluding title page, table of contents, financial reporting, and
appendicesy};

o Use of hyperlinks to reference existing documents;

« Elimination of photos and graphics;

* Requirement to identify and report on implementation of government direction,
per the Government Letters of Expectations (GLE) and the Taxpayer
Accountability Principles Addendum to the 2014 GLE;

e Financial information is to be presented in bullet form or in footnotes: and,

» Focus is on information pertinent to performance management and planning.
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Ministry staff provided guidance and assistance o {TA staff towards finalizing the
accompanying annual service plan report. The Assistant Deputy Minister, Labour
Market and Immigration Division, reviewed and approved the 2014/15 ITA ASPR.

Management Services Division, CARQO and Treasury Board Staff provided a further
level of review to confirm consistency with:

BTAA requirements,

« Cabinet direction through the 2014 GLE and the Taxpayer Accountability
Principles;
Government expenditures; and,

» CARO’s Crown Corporation Annual Service Pian Report Guidelines.

On May 27, 2015, the ITA Board of Directors approved the 2014/15 ITA Annual Service
Plan Report.

OPTIONS:
1. Approve 2014/15 Industry Training Authority Annual Service Plan Report

2. Approve 2014/15 Industry Training Authority Annual Service Plan Report with
changes

RECOMMENDATION: Option 1

ATTACHMENT: 2014/15 Industry Training Authority Annual Service Plan Report

Approved / Not Approved Date:

Comments:

Contact: Amie Foster, Manager Policy and Review, Management Services Division
Telephone: (250) 356-2036

- ‘Reviewed by

Dir: ED: ADM: DM
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For more information on the Industry Training Authority contact:

Location:

8" Floor — 800 Granville Avenue
Richmond, BC
V6Y 3T6

E-mail:

customerservice(@itabe.ca

Or visit our website at;

wwiv.itabc.ca
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Board Chair’s Message and Accountability Statement

Last year was one of significant change for the Industry Training Authority
{ITA). A new Board of Directors was appointed to support implementation
i of a Transition Plan developed to respond to the McDonald Report
recommendations and in alignment with 8.C. s Skills for Jobs Blueprint.

ITA has transformed its approach to industry outreach, linking labour market
research and industry input to ensure evidence-based investment. Ten new
Sector Advisory Groups now allow industry leaders to provide strategic
advice on sectoral trades training. Four Industry Relations Managers are also
| now in place, along with fifteen new regional Apprenticeship Advisors.
These new resources have cnabled ITA {o deepen connections with trades
training stakeholders, and provide crucial supports for apprentices.

ITA’s new Action Plan for LNG Trades Training is on track to respond to BC's evolving liquefied
natural gas (LNG) sector. The newly developed Construction Craft Worker (CCW) program is BC's
48" Red Scal trade, and will train workers for the most in-demand of the LNG occupations. With the
launch of the online Apprentice fob Match Tool, ITA and WorkBC are helping connect apprentices
with potential sponsors, and building the skilled workforce we need.

A continued focus on youth engagement has paid dividends. In 2014/15, ITA exceeded a key
performance target, with 57% of participants in Foundation programs continuing on to Apprenticeship
programs. More than 8,300 students got a first-hand look at (rades careers, participating in hands-on
skilled trades activities at 31 Yes 2 Jt events around the province.

In 2014/15 TTA achieved, or was very close to achieving, five of the seven current performance
measures. 9,958 sponsors were registered in 2014/13, outstripping the 2013/14 levels and
dramatically exceeding the current target. While the ambitious target of 8,000 credentials issued was
not met, the 7,514 credentials that were issucd well exceeded the 2013/14 number. Employer and
credential holder satisfaction with ITA credentials was also higher than the previous year, and the
Sponsor Value Index remained stable, although both performance measures narrowly missed the
2014/15 target. The effectiveness of ITA’s training delivery investment, measured by the capacity
utilization scores, actually excceded the target for the second straight year.

The Industry Training Authority 2014/15 Annual Service Plan Report compares the corporation’s
actual results to the expected results identified in the ITA Service Plan 2014/15-2016/17. Tam
accountable for those results as reported.

%—Z}w

Gwyn Morgan, C.M.
Board Chair
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Purpose of the Organization

The Industry Training Authority (ITA) leads and coordinates British Columbia’s skilled trades
system. ITA works with employers, employccs, industry, labour, training providers and government
to issue credentials, manage apprenticeships, set program standards, and increase opportunities in the
trades.

ITA’s mandate and accountabilities are defined in Part 3 of the fndustry Training Authority Act, and
are elaborated annually through a letter of expectations signed by the board chair and the Minister of
Tohs, Tourism and Skills Training.

Strategic Direction and Context

Strategic Direction

ITA’s 2014/15 Government Letter of Expectations (GLE), signed January 28 (JTST) and February 13,
2014 (ITA), directed the Corporation to work closely with Government, training providers and
indusiry to implement initiatives identified in the September 2013 Skills and Training Action Plan for
BC, and directives issued in the June 2013, GLE. Specific focus was required on:

» Expanding opportunitics for youth to start trades training prior to graduation, incrcasing the
number of K-12 graduates entering trades programs and creating a seamless path for students
from high school, through trades training and into the workforce.

¢ lmproving online services and coaching supports, and implementing other apprenticeship
reforms designed to drive an increasc in the number of apprentice completions and
employer/sponsor participation,;

* Designing, evaluating and implementing flexible apprenticeship fraining initiatives:

¢ Developing and implementing competency-based asscssment tools and processes to facilitate
domesiic and offshore recruitment and certification of semi-skilled trades workers.
Developing an LNG Action Plan;

+ Delivering programs to increase the number of youth, aboriginal people, women and
immigrants accessing trades training throughout BC.

The GLE was followed by the Taxpayer Accountability Principles Addendum, signed by the Minister
and ITA’s newly constituted Board of Directors. The Addendum outlined the Board’s responsibilities
for ensuring implementation of the governance, accountahility, cost contro! and other interests
claborated in the Taxpayer Accountability Principles.

Strategic Context

On April 29, 2014, the BC government made public the McDonald Report, as part of the B.C. ‘s Skills
for Jobs Blueprint. Together, these documents set out a plan to develop a skilled workforce that is

ready to meet the challenges of BC’s expanding industry. The Industry Training Authority took
specific direction from these documents, and embarked on an ambitious realignment of their industry
relations functions, resources and programming to support McDonald Report recommendations and
Blueprint initiatives.
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The Corporation welcomed a new Board of Directors in May, 2014, to Jead the changes necded to
strengthen the apprenticeship system. As recommended in the McDonald Report, ITA Executive
worked with the new Chair and Board to develep and implement a 90-Day Transition Plan that
outlined an approach to engage industry in the implementation of the Blueprint commitments and
remaining recommendations. The plan focused on {our priority action areas:

1. Launch LNG Action Plan: In September, 2014, ITA released an Action Plan for LNG
Trades Training, developed in consultation with industry, and aligned with regional and
sectorial demands. The Plan contained eight confirmed and eight proposed actions to support
the trades training rcquirements of the LNG sector.

2. Re-Align Training Investment: ITA continues to work with government to develop and
cstablish a transparent process for making training investment decisions aligned with labour
market demand targets.

3. Transform Industry Relations: ITA has introduced a broader industry engagement approach
to ensure alignment of BC’s training system with industry demand. Ten new Sector Advisory
Groups — representing BC’s key industries —are in place, along with a new team of Industry
Relations Managers.

4. Enhance I'TA Capability: Functions carried out by the Industry Training Organizations
(ITOs) were transferred into ITA by October 31, 2014. ITA now has 15 regional
Apprenticeship Advisors, including five with Aboriginal subject matter expertise. ITA will
also ensure that it has the capability needed to deliver on other government expectations.

Report on Performance

ITA’s performance closely matched the Government’s Letter of Expectations. The organization met,
exceeded or came close to meeting five of the seven performance measure outlined below. 1TA
continues work to implement the Taxpayer Accountability Principles outlined in the addendum to the
Government’s Letter of Expectations. ITA’s Board and its entire staff have signed the updated Code
of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Policy. ITA continues to work closely with the Ministry of Jobs,
Tourism and Skills Training in developing and implementing initiatives linked to the Taxpayer
Accountability Principles.

Goals, Strategies, Measures and Targets

Goal 1; Effectively represent the voice of industry within the BC skills training
system.

Strategies:

e Expand our engagement strategy across the province to ensure, on an ongoing basis, a high
level of industry input to better inform the training system.
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e Work with industry to expand our ability to collect, evaluate and process industry intelligence
to complement existing labour market information, and conduct relevant and high guality
rescarch.

Performance Measure 1.1: Satisfaction with ITA representation of industry

The independent review, The Industry Training Authority and Trades Training in BC: Recalibrating
Jor High Performance (2014), recommended that ITA refocus its industry engagement framework.
As a result, ITA will continue to work with industry sector advisory groups to review appropriate
industry engagement measures and will replace thits with an improved measure once the sector
advisory groups have provided feedback.

- 2016/17

Performance | 2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 |
Measute | Actal | Forecast | Target | M1 | Targer | Target.
Satisfaction N/A N/A Establish To be To be . Tobe
with ITA Benchmark | reviewed by | reviewed by : reviewed by
tati sectar sector sector
rep resentation advisory advisory advisory
of industry groups 2roups Eroups
Goal 2:; ITA credentials are valued by industry and individuals, and align with

the economic needs of BC.

Strategies:

» Continue to promote training participation and sponsorship, in partnership with government
and other stakeholders.

¢ Expand flexible learning options to reduce the time away from the workplace.

¢ Continue 10 align training with labour market information and provide regional training
opportunities.

e Continue to expand implementation of standard level exams and ensure consistent assessment
of apprentices at each level of training.

¢ Expand industry required non-trades certification process, where applicable.

Goal 2 Performance Measures
Performance Measure 2.1: Credentials Issued

Each credential issued verifies that an additional member of the workforce possesses the occupational
skills needed to carry out a particular trade. This benefits both the individual and the employer.
Credentials issued are the culmination of ITA’s work. All other performance measures either
intluence outcontes on this measure or indicate the efficiency with which it is being achieved.
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Performance | 2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014715 | 2014115 | 201516 | 2016/17
Meagure Actual Actual Target Actual Target Target

Credentials 8,042 7,059 8,000 7,514 8,250 8,750

Issued

Discussion

e Over the past year, I'TA issued 6.4% more credentials than 2013/14. However, the increase
fell short of the targeted 11.8% increase to 8,000,

« This is the first year of increase after two years of decline, due largely to market conditions
following the 2008 and 2009 economic downturn.

e ITA anticipates that a portion of apprentices who delayed their training during the economic
downturn will be issued credentials at a later time and that the total number of credentials
issued will continue to grow.

o ITA has deployed new Apprenticeship Advisors to support apprentices and sponsors along
with a new Managcr of Apprentice Completions and anticipates that with these resources in
place, the number of credentials issued will continue rising.

Performance Measure 2.2: ITA Investment per Credential Issued

This measure is the ratio of total I'TA cxpenditures to total credentials 1ssued in a given year. Targets
are therefore a function of projected expenditures and targeted credentials issued in future years. As
the investment targets arc inherently linked to the munber of credentials issued, achievement of this
measure is directly dependent on the number of credentials used.

Performance Measure | 2012/13 | 2613/14 | 2014/15 | 2014/15 | 2015116 | 2016/17
Actual *| Actual | Target | Actual | Target | Target

ITA Investment per $13,190 | $15.494 | 812,057 | $13,962 | $11,570 ; $10,909 E
i Credential Issued :

Discussion:

o In this measure of efficiency, ITA managed fo reduce its invesiment per credential by 9.9 per
cent. However, the measure fell short of its targeted reduction of 22.2 per cent.

e The lower number of credentials issued in 2014/15 {explained in the discussion above)
compared to forecast figures negatively impacted ITA’s performance against this measure.

e ITA’s core budget has remained consistent with previous years.

o ITA is improving ils training investment framework and will roll out enhancements in 2015/16
1o ensure training investments are efficient and responsive to labour market demands.

Performance Measure 2.3: Satisfaction with ITA Credentials

This mcasure focuses on ITA’s primary output, and informs continuous improvement efforts. The
satisfaction index is comprised of employer or credential holder satisfaction and importance ratings on
the following statements about ITA credentials:
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Employers

¢ An [TA credential signals that the holder is able to meet the skill needs of your company
¢ An[TA credential signals that the holder will increase your company’s profitability
* AnITA credential is valued and requested by your customers

Credential Holders

I'TA credential signals to employers that you are able to meet their skills needs
ITA credential gives you a competitive advantage for employment or promotion
ITA credential increases your eamning potential

ITA credential allows you to work in other parts of Canada or abroad

Performance Measure 2’_0_12{1'3 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2014115 | 2015/16 | 2016/17-
o | Actual 7. Actual -Tax_fget." Actual Target | __Target :

Satisfaction with ITA

Credentials’

« Employers 78% 77% 80% 79% 80% 80%
e Credential Holders 86% 84% 6% 85% 86% 86%
Discussion:

» 820 credential holders and 308 employers completed ITA’s performance measurement survey
in December 2014,

* Rates of Satisfaction with ITA Credentials for both credential holders and employers were one
per cent below target levels but within the margin of errar (+/-3.4 per cent for credential
holders; +/-5.6 per cent for employers) and so can be considered consistent with the targets
outlined in the Service Plan.

Goal 3: Skills recognition and training pathways to ITA credentials are effective
and meet the needs of industry.

Strategies:
« Continue to implement enhanced supports for both apprentices and sponsors.

» Continue to expand and accelerate the development and implementation of competency-based
assessments, providing an alternative credentialing pathway for those with existing skills
(including skills acquired outside BC).

¢ Accelerate time to completion by increasing flexible learning opportunities where supported
by industry.

! Percentages reflect weighted ratings rclative to several potential outcomes of holding a credential, including signaling to
employers an ability to meet skill needs, competitive employment advantage, and contribution to earning potential and
employer profitabitity.
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¢ Sustain and continue to refine youth strategy with a particular focus on continuation from high
school to apprenticeship.

» Foster stronger relationships with industry, training organizations and labour, with a focus on
increasing the number of employer sponsors and improve the completion rates of apprentices.

Performance Measure 3.1: Total Registered Sponsors

The number of sponsors is an approximate indication of the availability of employers and sponsors {o
support the work-based training portion of the apprenticeship. Targets are aligned with the target for
the number of credentials issued, and the level of sponsorship participation required 1o support 1i, as
well as industry hiring capacity.

Performance | 2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2014/15 2015716 | 2016/17
Measure . Actual | Actual Target | Actial | Target | Target

Total 9,188 9,548 9,500 9,958 9,700 9,900

Registered

Sponsors

Discussion:

¢ For the second consecutive year, ITA exceeded its target measure for the number of registered
SPOnSors.

e ITA has enhanced its outreach efforts to sponsors through newly-hired Managers of Industry
Relations and 15 regionally-based Apprenticeship Advisors who provide on-the-ground
sponsor suppori,

o New sponsor recognition programs have helped grow recognition of the value of
apprenticeship and grow sponsorship.

e New sponsor supports such as the Employer Guidebook has provided sponsors with more
resources to manage apprenticeships and the new online Apprentice Job Match tool helps
match potential sponsors with potential apprentices.

Performance Measure 3.2: Sponsor Value Index

This is a composite measure of employers’ perceptions of the benetits they gain from their investment
in sponsoring and training apprentices. It is intended to inform ITA’s continuous improvement
efforts. The Sponsor Value Index is developed [rom employers’ satisfaction and importance ratings
on four statements:

e The training your apprentices receive aligns with the skill nceds of your company.

e Apprentices increase your company’s profitability.

s Apprenticeship training provides your company with a recruiting and retention advantage.
s The administrative requirements of sponsoring apprentices are manageable.
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Performance - | 2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17

Measure Actual Actual Target Actual Target | Target
Sponsor 76% 77% 78% 77% 79% 80%
Valuc Index®

Discussion:

¢ The result is based on a December 2014 survey of 843 sponsors.

e The Sponsor Valuc Index target for 2014/15 is one per cent below target but within the margin
of error (+/-3.4 per cent for current sponsors; +/-8.7 per cent for lapsed sponsors) and so can
be considered consistent with the targets outlined in the Service Plan.

s  Overall, the majority of sponsors remain satisfied/very satisfied with apprenticeship value in

each of the four measurement arcas making up the index.

¢ Sponsors were most satisfied with apprenticeship training’s alignment with their companics’
skill needs as well as the manageable administration requirements associated with

sponsorship.

» ITA utilizes the Sponsor Value Index as well as the component variables and other survey data

to inform continuous improvement efforts.

Performance Measure 3.3: Continuation from Foundation to Apprenticeship

This measure reflects ITA’s emphasis on ensuring pre-apprenticeship programs are closely
workplace-linked, focused on trade-specific job-readiness and provide effective pathways to
apprenticeship. Targets reflect achievable and meaningful levels of continuous improvement and

align with the targeted number of credentials issucd over time.

2013/14 2014/15

Act_uai- |

201213
Actual |

2014/13
Target

Performance
Meas_ure

Actual

- 2015/16
Target |.

2016/17

Target

1

Continuation 51% 54% 53% 57%

from
Foundation to
Apprenticeship®

54%

54%

Discussion:

+ Continuation Rates from Foundation Programs into Apprenticeship have been on an upward

trend and have risen by six percentage points since 2012/13.

* For the sccond straight year, the Continuation Rate rosc by three percent over the previous

year, and exceeded ITA’s target by four percent.

? Score reflects weighted ratin gs relative to severat aspects of sponsorship value including contribution to profitability,
recruitment and retention advantage, and manageable administrative requirements.

* This measure is based on continuation by participants in Foundation programs.
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ITA has worked closely with training providers to ensure Foundation participants are being
adequately prepared for Apprenticeship in order to maximize investment in those training spaces and
in 2015/16 ITA will unveil new incentives that will continue improving the continuation rate.

Performance Measure 3.4: Capacity Utilization

The percentage of seats filled in I'TA-funded technical training programs is one mcasure of the
efficiency with which funding is allocated within the training delivery budget.

Performance 2012/13 | 2013/14 2014115 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17
Measure Actual Actual Target Actual Target Target

Capacity 89.6% 90.5% 88.0% : 90.2% 88.5% 0%

Utilization :

Discussion:

e Training delivery investment saw actual utilization rates finish above the target for the second
straight year.

s ITA worked with training providers to implement new mechanisms thatl ensure training
investments go towards in-demand programs, which helps to increase capacity utilization.

e For every one per cent increase in capacity utilization, more than 200 additional peopie are
trained.

Financial Report

Management Discussion and Analysis
Revenues

Consistent with prior years, ITA’s 2014/15 revenues consisted mainly of core funding of $94.4
mitlion from the provincial government.

ITA received $9 million in funding through the Canada- British Columbia Job Fund (CJF), to support
the engagement and training of under-represented groups in the trades: women, new Canadians and
Aboriginal people. The decline from the $14.8 million level of funding in 2013/14 reflects the
transition period between the expiry of the BC Canada Labour Market Agreement on March 31, 2014
to the newly negotiated Canada-British Columbia Job Fund (starting April 1, 2014).

ITA generated approximately $1 million through assessments, investment income and royaltics —
revenues that fund the production of lcarning resources, and the management of certification and level
exam challenge assessments.
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Expenditures

Expenditures in 2014/15 reflect a continued focus on industry engagement, youth engagement,
accessibility of training to under-tepresented groups, and apprenticeship awareness and outreach
programs, in line with the Government’s Letter of Expectations and the 2014/15 Service Plan,
Historically, ITA, through several Industry Training Organizations (FTQs), had focused significant
investment towards updating all program standards. As a result of the McDonald Report released in
May 2014, ITA discontinued the ITO service contracts. Services formerly provided by the ITOs were
brought in house, including: industry engagement, program standard development and challenge
assessments. ITA increased its staff complement by 35 employecs, predominantly in industry and
apprentice support and program development roles. This allowed ITA to provide more efficient and
effective service to industry and apprentices. to manage program development and to simultaneously
redircet over $1 million towards youth engagement, and outreach programs.

ITA realigned tts financial resources in the 2014/2015 Service Plan to achieve the putcomes
articulated in the Government’s Letter of Expectations.

2(14/2015 Surplas

Effective surplus management strategies resulted in a surplus of $191 thousand, a significant decline
from the 2013/14 level of $1.2 million.

As a crown agency, 1TA is precluded from incurring debt, and annual operating surpluses are
transferred to accumulated surplus, which is restricted to expenditures for capital assets.

At the end of fiscal 2014/15, ITA had an accumulated surplus of $22 million. Approximately $2
million was directed towards office expansion to accommodate new staff and additional space and
mecting rooms required for operations. The $2 million consists of $1.2 million in lease improvements
and $800,000 in equipment and furniture. However, the latter will be offset by $800,000 in tenant
inducements from the building landlord. ITA will record the tenant inducements as deferred revenue
on the Statement of Financial Position, and will recognize equal amounts as revenue over the term of
the lease to 2024, meaning the net overall capital cost for the expanded space will be $1.2M.

An additional $500 thousand was used to begin the development of a new digital platform designed to
increase industry, apprentice and youth engagement, improve customer service, and provide ITA with
business infelligence to better align training investment with market demand. Going forward, the
accumulated surplus will be used primarily to further enhance the new digital platform.

Future Financial Outlook

ITA will continue to work with the Ministry of Jobs, Tourism, Skills and Training to advance
government priorities and direction articulated in the Government’s Tetter of Expectation, the 2014
McDonald Report, and BC'’s Skills for Jobs Blueprint. This includes continued implementation of the
Youth Apprenticeship Stratcgy which will create expenditure pressures for ITA.

ITA investments in a new digital platform will facilitate industry, apprentice and youth engagement,
while providing business intelligence to ITA. This will further allow ITA to continuously adjust and
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align training investment with demand and provide a world class apprenticeship management
system. The technology will be deployed in stages over three years.

As of the date of this report, ITA had received interim Canada Job Fund (CJF) funding for 2015/16 of
$1.4 million. The CJF is currently in the process of finalizing its procurcment process and ITA
expects to receive further {unding to continue its work with underrepresented groups including
women, immigrants and aboriginal people.

Other Areas
Major expenditure categories for ITA in 2014/15 included training delivery, labour supply imitiatives,
assessment and certification, industry engagement and core expenditures.

Accumulated surplus wiil continue to be used primarily to build and enhance the new digttal platform.
ITA had no capital projects greater than $50 million in 2014/15.

Trends, Risks and Opportunities

As aresult of ITA’s mandate revicw, in 2014/15 ITA engaged in a review of its training investment
process. Through consuitation with industry and training providers, ITA has proposed a ncw, more
flexible funding framework that better aligns investment with labour market demand, mcents
outcomes, has accountability measures built in, and is a multi-year approach to funding. The new
framework also recognizes and adjusts for the increased delivery cost of programs, currently funded at
levels set over a decade ago. Once approved, this framework will be introduced in 2015/16 and will
become effective 2016/17.

For 2015/16, ITA’s training investment will continue to be aligned with the regional economic needs
of British Columbia as identified in the Province’s labour market information. However, certain
aspects of the new framework will be introduced and piloted this year. The funding will remain at
$78 million, represeniing over 80% of the core budget, with an additional $3.5 million made available
through the Labour Market Demand Fund. The funding will be focused on high priority sectors and
the expected high demand jobs, and program parameters will bc adjusted to also support innovative
models of delivery. Training investment for apprentices is already aligned to demand, as apprentices
have jobs. Foundation investment will be focused on high demand trades, and on programs that lead
to higher completion ratcs and entrance into the apprenticeship programs. Training investment for
tabour supply target areas -- such as youth and underrepresented groups ~ will be focused towards
improving continuation rates into the apprenticeship pathway.

The number of ITA credentials issued increased by 6% over 2013/14 and the number of registered
sponsors increascd by 5%. This can be attributed to BC’s strengthening economy, as well as focused
industry engagement efforts within ITA. Future performance targets are on an upward trend,
reflective of the strengthening provincial economy.
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Industry Training Authority

Financial Resource Summary Tabie

$ millions 2009710 | 2010/11 | 2011712 | 2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2014/15 | 2014/15 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17
Actual Agtual Actua} Actual Acmat Budget Actual Vgl:;g:tw \;,?_;:“‘;2 :: Budget | Budget
FUNDING & REVENUES:
Ministry - General Funding 94,444 94.444 94.444 94.444 94,444 94.444 94.444 - - 94,444 | 94444
Ministry - Other Funding & Grants 18.370 17.152 12.553 13.979 14.842 6.792 9.204 2.4]12 {5.638) - -
Federal Funding 0.057 0.634 0,192 0.098 0.009 - (.007 0.007 {0.002) - -
Other Revenue 0.863 1.036 1,100 1.208 1,329 1.285 1.452 0.167 0.123 1.346 1.346
Tuiul Funding & Revenues 113,774] 113.266f 108285 109729] 110.624}f 1025211 105.107 2.386 (5517 95790 | 95790
EXPENDITURES:
Engage Indusiry 3.403 3.621 1.382 1.662 2.828 1.584 1.547 (0.037) (1.281) 1.016 1016
Define Standards 1.814 3.091 3.744 4.028 3.090 2.667 2.161 (0.506) (0.929) 1.826 1.826
Deliver assessments and
certilication 1.455 1.838 1.056 0.968 2014 2.627 2,117 0310 0.103 2.824 2.824
Invest in Training Pathways 95,245 93.049 27.286 91.304 93.066 85.273 87.655 2382 {5411 79.080 | 79080
Customer Support 1.521 1,499 1.439 1,445 1.157 2.482 2.315 {0.167) £.158 3135 3.135
Communicate 0.736 0.551 1.042 1.375 1.596 1.525 2.619 1.094 1.023 0.776 t.176
Business Support 7456 6.247 5.337 3.371 5.621 6.363 6.502 0,139 (0.881 7.133 7.133
Total Expenditures 111.632] 109.896F 103.285| 106.153] 109.372| 102.521 | 104916 2.395 (4.456) 95.790 95.790
Net Income 2.142 3.370 5.003 3.576 1.252 - 0.191 0.191 (1.061) - -
Total Liabifities 6.039 5.248 56.993 6.791 4.709 4.500 5.565 1.063 0.856 4.500 4.500
Accumulated surplus 6.340 12,383 17.386 20,962 22214 22214 22.405 0.151 0.19} 22.214 | 22214

* 2010 was prepared based on Not for Prefit Canadian Generally Accepted Accoumiing Principles. Mobile trainer loss on transfer to Nicola Valley Institute of
Technology incinded in Business Support.
2011-2018, inciuding forecast information, was prepared based or current Canadian Generally Accepted Acceunting Principles {GAAP - PSAB).
2009-201 1 Deliver Assessmeni and Certification compensation was not tracked separately from Customer Support
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Industry Training Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2015

Management’s Report

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statemenis

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HAVE BEEN PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT N
ACCORDANCE WITH CANADIAN PUBLIC SECTOR ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND
THE INTEGRITY AND OBIECTIVITY OF THESE STATEMENTS ARE MANAGEMENT’S
RESPONSIBILITY.

Management is also responsible for all of the notes to the financial statements and schedules, and
for ensturing that this information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information
contained in the financial statements. A summary of fhe significant accounting policies are
described in Note 2 to the financial statements. The preparation of financial statements
necessarily involves the use of estimates based on management’s jndgment, particularly when
transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized with certatnty until future
periods.

Management is alse responsible for implementing and maintaining a sysiem of internal controls
i provide reasonable assurance that reliable financial infonmation is produced. The intemal
controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance thal assets are safeguarded, transactions
are properly authorized and recerded in compliance with legislative and regulatory requirements,
and reliable financial information is available on a timely basis for preparation of the financial
statements,

The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its responsibitities
for finaneial reporting and intemat control and exercises these responsibilities through the Board.
The Beard reviews internal financial staiements at every meeting and external audited financial
statements yearly. The Board also discusses any significant financial reporting or internal control
matters prior to their approval of the financial statements.

The external auditors, BDO Canada LLP, conduct an independent cxamination, in accordance
with Canadian auditing standards, and express their opinion on the financial staiements. The
external auditors have full and free access to [inancial management of Industry Training
Authority and meet when required. The accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report outlines
their responsibilities, the scope of their examination and their opinion on the firancial
staternents.

On behalf of Industry Training Authority

iﬁ Hlman- PR D

enman " Famnaz Riahi CPA,CA
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financia} Officer
May 14, 2015
!
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Industry Training Authority

Tl 604 688 5421 BOO Canacda LLP

Fass s 628 5132 600 Cathedral Piace

vanrouazr bda ca 925 Wesr Georpia Street

wine bdo £a Yancouver B{ V&L L2 Canada

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of the Industry Training Authority

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Industry Training Authority, which
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at March 31, 2015 and the Statement of Operations and
Changes in Accumulated Surpius, Changes in Net Financial Assets and Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and othar explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Finandal Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presantation of these financial stataments in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
managament determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statemants that are free
frum material misstatement, whether due to fraud or arror.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
¢onducted our audit in accordance with Canmadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we camply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit invelves performing procedires to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financizl statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditar's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks af material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. in making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal cantrol relevant ta the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in arder o design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s intemal controt. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting palicies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by managemant, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We petieve that the audit evidence we have ohtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

fn our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in 2ll material respects, the financial position of
the Industry Training Authority as at March 31, 2015 and iis results of operatians, changes in net
financial assets, remeasurement gains and losses and cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2015, in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

gpo Conada, 417
Chartered Accountants

Yancouver, British Columbia
May 14, 2015

B0 Canada LLP, a Canadian limited fisbility partnessiip. 5 a momber af BDO Wsenatianal Lintited., 2 UK cornpany limited by guarantes, and
forms part of tha internatianal RDY netwnr k of independent mamber Hire,
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“Industry Training Authority

[ndustry Training Authority
Statement of Financizal Position
As at March 31, 2013
i thousands of doflars

Note _March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Financial Assets
Cash 18,759 17.813
Accounts ieceivable 33 282
Due from goverameni/other governmenl organtzalions 3 2,356 4,198
21,178 22,203
Liabilities
Accoundts payable and accrued Habilities 4 2,815 2,772
Due to govemment/other government organizations 6 2342 1,543
Deferred rovenue 7 408 394
5.565 4,709
Net financial assets 15,613 17,584
Men-Tinancial assets
Tangible capital assets g 5.958 3,927
Prepaid expenses 734 703
6,702 4,630
Accumulated surplus 22,405 2214
Contractual obligations H

The acoompanying noles are an inlegral part ol these Nnancial stalements.

lug— P

Gywa Morgan, Board Chair M) Wintemarsh, Aodid Cominitiee Charr

e '
“/ - Z
N
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[ndustry Training Authority

Industry Training Authority
Statcment of Operations and Changes in Accumulaied Surplus
For the Year Ended March 31, 2015
in thousands of dollars

Naote Budget March 31,2615  March 31,2014
{Note 13)
Revennes
Provincial general funding 94 444 94,444 94,444
Pravincial pramts and other 6,192 9,204 14,842
Federal funding received - 7 9
Operating 350 470 429
Fees 400 477 415
Investment income 460 452 431
Other 75 53 54
102,521 105,107 110,624
Expenses 11
Engage industry (non standards work) 1,584 1,547 2,828
Define standards 2,667 2,161 3.090
Daliver assessments and certification 2,627 2,117 2,014
Invest in triping pathways 85,273 R7,655 93,066
Custamer suppart 2,482 2,315 1,157
Cammunicate 1,525 2419 1,596
Business sepport 6,363 6,502 5,621
102,521 134,916 109,372
Annual surplus - 191 1,252
Accumulated serplus at the beginning of the year 22214 20,562
Accumulated surplus at end of year 22,405 22214

The accampanying notes arg an integrat part of these financial statements.
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Industry Training Authority
Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets
For the Year ended March 31, 2015

in thousands of dollars
Budpet
(Note 13) Moarch 31,2015  Mberch 31, 2014
Annual operabing surplus - 9 1,252
Acquisition of tangible capifal assets (3,164) (2,815) (3153
Amcrtization of tangible capital assets 93D 844 743
Write-downs on 1angibic capital assets - - -
{2.234) {2,031) 228
Acquisition of prepaid expense - {(131) {332y
Increase (decrease) in net financial assets (2,234) {1,971) 1,148
Net financial assets at begioning of year 17,584 17,584 16,436
Net financinl asseis at end of year 15,350 15,613 17,584
The accompanying notes are an integral parl of these fmancial statements.
5
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. Industry Training Authority

Industry Training Authority

Statement of Cash Flows
in thousands of dollars
March 31,2015 March 31, 2014

Opernting transaclions
Annual surplus 191 1,252
Non-cash items included in annual surplus incraasef(decreasa):

Amartization 844 743

Change in prepatd expenses (131} {332)

Change in receivables 2,061 3,245

Change in payables and accrued liahilities 842 (2,025)

Change in deferred revenue 14 {33)
Cash provided by operating transactions 3.821 2,826
Capital transactions
Cash used to zcquire tangible capital assets {2,875) (515}
Cash applied to capital transactions {2,875) (515)
increase in cash during the year 946 2311
Cash at beginning of year 17,813 15,502
Cash at end of year 18,759 17,813

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Industry Training Authority

Industry Training Autherity
Notes to Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2015 - continned

1. Nature of Operations

Indusiry Training Authority (ITA) is a Crown agency established on January 2, 2004 and
aperates under the authority of the fadustry Training Authority Act. ITA reports to the
Legislative Assembly through the Ministry of Jobs, Tourism and Skills Training. The mandate of
the ITA is to oversee occepational standards, credentialing, and apprenticeship for skilfed trades
and occupations in demand by mdustry and the BC labour market. It serves the public interest
ensuring industry standards and credentials are in place for skilled trades and occupations, while
providing individuals with accessible technical apprenticeship training opporfunities that are
closely linked to workplace opportunitics. These services are grouped into the following key
arcas; standards, industry engagement, credential awareness, assessment and certification,
training delivery and labour supply mitiatives.

On April 29, 2014 the Province announced it was aceepting all recommendations made by
Independent Review Lead Jessica L. McDonald in her repost: The fndustry Training Awthority
and Trades Training in BC: Recalibrating for High Performance. While ITA’s current role was
re-confirmed, implementation of the repori’s recommendations will have an impact on the
operaitons of ITA.

ITA is exempt from income taxes under the fncome Tec Act.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a. Basis of accounting
The financial statements are prepared by management in aceordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the
Chartered Professicnal Accountants Canada.

b. Tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets ars recorded at cost, which included amounts that are dircetly rclated
to the acquisition, design, construction, development, itnprovement or betterment of assets,

The cost, less residual valuc, of the tangible capital assets, is amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives as foliows:

Furniture and equipment 3 years
Computer hardware and sofiware 3-10 years
Leasehold improvements 10 vears

[~
[
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Industry Training Authority

Notes to Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2015 - continued

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies — continued

Amortization is charged from the date the asset is put into use until it is taken out of use,
Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is put into productive use.

Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate that they no longer
contribute ta I'TA’s ability to provide credentials and services. The net write-downs are
accounted for as expenses in the statement of operations.

Transfers of capital assets from related pariics are recorded at carrying value. ITA has
recorded additions relating 1o computer software for apprenticeship records at carrying value.

c. Employee future benefits
i. The employees of ITA belong to the Public Service Pension Plan, which is a multi-
employer joint trustee plan. This plan is a defined benefit plan, providing a pension on
retirement based on the member’s age at retirement, length of service and highest
eamings averaged over five years. Inflation adjustments are contingent upon available
funding.

The joint trustee board of the plan determines the required plan contributions annually.
The contribution of I'TA to the plan is recorded as an expense for the vear.

ii. The costs of insured benefits reflected in these financial statements are the employer’s
portion of the insurance premiums owed for the coverage of employees during the
period.

d. Prepaid expenses
Prepaid expenses include paynents to private trainers for classes spanning the fiscal vear end
as well as other operational expenses and are charged to expense over the periods expected to
benefit from the prepaid.

¢. Revenue recognition
Revenues are recognized in the period when the transactions or events occurred that gave rise
to the revenues. All revenues are recorded on an accrual basis, except when the aceruals
cannot be determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their estimation is
impractical.

Government transfers are recognized as revenues when the transfer is authorized and any
eligibility critcria are met, except to the extent that transfer stipuations give rise to an
cbligation that meets the definition of a liability. Transfers are recognized as deferred
revenue when transfer stipulations give rise to a lability and are taken into revenue in the
statement of operations as the stipulzation liabilitics are settled.
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Industry Training Authority

Industry Training Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2015 - contioned

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Contributions from other sources are deferred when restnictions are placed on their use by the
coniributor, and are recognized as revenue in the period when they arc used for the specific

purpose.

Revenue related to fees or services received in advance of the fee being eamned or the service
is performed is deferred and recognized when the fee is eamned or service performed.

f. Expenses
Expenses are reported on an accrual basis. The cost of all goods consumed and services
received during the vear is expenscd.

Grants and transfers are recorded as expenses when the transfer is authorized and eligibility
criteria have been met by the recipient.

g. Foreign enrrency translation
Forcign currcney transactions are transiated at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in a foreign currency are translated at the rate of
exchange in effect at the reporting date. Revennes and expenses are translated at the rate
prevailing at the transaction date. Foreign currency translation gains and losses are included
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

h. Financial instruments
The fair vatue of a financial instrument is the estimated amount that I'TA wonld receive or
pay to settle a financial asset or financial liability as at the reporting date.

The fair valucs of cash, accounts receivable, due from government/other government
organizations, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, due to government/other govermnment
organizations approximate their carrying values given their short-lerm maturities.

Measurement ancertainty

The preparation of financiai statements is in conformity with Canadian public sector
accounting standards. These standards require management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reporting amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosuee of
contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of the financial stalcments and the reported
amonnts of the revenues and cxpenscs during the period. ltems requiring the use of
significant cslimates include: collectability of accounts receivable and due frem

2014/15 Annual Service Plan Report 24
90 of 105



{ndustry Training Authority

Industry Training Authority

NNetes to Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2015 - continued

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

government/other government organizations, the useful life of tangible capital assets and

rates for amortization.

Estimates are based on the best information available at the time of preparation of the
financial statements and are reviewed annually to reflect new information as it becomes
available. Measurement uncertainty exists in these financial statements. Actual results could

differ from these estimates.

3. Due from Government and Other Government Organizations

Provincial govermment
Federal government
Other government organizations

4. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accourss payable and accrued liabilities
Salaries and benefits payable
Accrued vacation pay

5. Employee Future Benefits

(in§ thousands)
Mar 31,2015 Mar 31, 2014
2,211 4,026
175 135
- 37
2,386 4,198

(in$ thousands)

Mar 31, 2015 Mar 31, 2014

2,681 2,653
1 14
123 105
2,815 2,772

ITA and its employees contribute 1o the Public Service Pension Plan in accordance with the
Public Sector Pensiens Act. BC Pension Coporation administers the plan, including payment of
pension benefits to employecs to whom the act applies. The Puhlic Sevvice Peusion Planis a

multi-employer, defined benefit plag.

Information about obligations for retirement benefits and other employee firure benefits is as

follows:

10
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Industry Training Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2015 - continmed

a. Refirement and other employee future benefits — pension plan
ITA and its employees contribute to the Public Service Pension Plan in accordance with the
Public Sector Pensions Act. The plan provides defined pension benefits to employees based
on their length of service and rates of pay. The maximum contribution rate for eligible
employees was 9.43% (2014: 9.43%). ITA’s maximum contribution rate is 10.93% (2014
10.93%). During the year ended March 31, 2015, ITA comtributed $526 (2014: $370) to the
pian. These contributions are [TA’s pension benefit expense. No pension Hability for this
type of plan is included in the financial statcments. An acluarial valuation is conducted every
three years to assess the (inancial position of the Public Service Pension Plan’s (PSPP’s)
pension fund. The latest actuarial valuation as at March 31, 2014 indicated a funding surplus
of $392,000 for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis. The actuary does not
attribute portions of the unfunded liabifity to individual employers. The nexi valuation will
be as at March 31, 2017, with results available in early 2018.

b. Long-term disability life insurance and health care benefits
ITA provides life insurance, dental and health care benefits to employees on long-term
disability leave for a period of two years after the date of disability. The insurance carrier
waives the life insurance premium for employees on fong-term disability; however, ITA is
responsible for the payment of the premium costs of medical, dentat and Medical Services
Plan under this plan. The costs of salary compensation paid lo employees on fong-term
disability leave are fulty insured through employee paid contributions and are not included in
this plan.

6. Due to Government and Other Government Organizations

{in ¥ thousands)
Mar 31, 2015 Mar 31, 2014

FPederal govennment I 2
Provincial government 361 496
Other government organizations 1,980 1,045

2,342 1,543

ITA’s liabilities to government and other government organizations are ali amounts payabie that
are due within 30 days. Other governmenl organizations includes: colleges, vniversilies and
school disiricls.

i1
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Industry Training Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
for the yvear ended March 31, 2015 - continued

7. Deferred Revenue

(in T thousands)
Balance  Receipts Transferred Balance
Apr1, 2014 to revenue  Mar 31, 2015
Tenant inducetnent Richmond office 394 - 53 341
Province - trades sector alighment - 105 38 67
394 103 51 408

ITA received $530 in tenant inducements for leasehold improvemncnts to the Richmond office in
fiscal 2012. This revenue is being deferred and recognized over the term of the lease. ITA
received $103 from the provinee’s Labour Market Program in fiscal 2615 for tradces sector
alignment.

8. Fiscal Risk Management

a. Financial management risk objectives and policies

In the normal course of operations, ITA is exposed to financial risks that have the potential to
negatively impact its financial performance. These risks may include credit risk and lquidity
rigk.

b. Credit risk
Credit risk 1s the risk that the ITA's counterparties will fail to meet their financial obligations

to the ITA, causing & potential financial loss.

Accounts receivable primarily consists of amounts due from ather governments; therefore,
collection nsk is low. ITA does not consider its exposurc to credit risk to be material.

¢. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the ITA may be unable to generate or abtain sufficient cash or
its equivalent in a timely and cost effective manner to meet its commitments as they come
due.

ITA has in place a planning, budgeting and forceasting process to detarmine the funds

requircd to support the ITA’s normal operating requirements, ITA’s annual budgets are
approved by the Board of Dircctors.

12

2014/15 Annual Service Plan Repori 27

93 of 105



Industry Training Authority
Notes te Financial Statements
for the vear ended March 31, 2015 - continued

9. Tangible Capital Assets

2015 (in $ thousands)
Computer
Furnitive and  hardware and ~ Leasehold  March 31, 2015
equipment software improveme s Total
Cost
Opcning Balance 528 7,009 604 8,141
Additions 790 924 1,165 2,875
Disposals - - - -
Closing Balance 1,318 7,929 1,763 11,014
Accumulate d Amortiz ation
Opening Balance 429 3,631 154 4,214
Additions 92 682 70 844
Disposals - - - -
Closing Balance 521 4,313 224 5,058
Net book value 797 3,616 1,545 5958

* Subsequent to year end ITA will be collecting $815 in tenant inducement.

2014 (in § thousands)
Compiter
Furmdtwee and  hardware amd Leasehold  March 31, 2014
____ equipment software improve ments Total
Cost
Opening Balance 481 6,545 600 1,626
Additions 47 464 4 515
Disposals - - - -
Closing Balance 518 7,009 604 8,141
Accunndated Amortization
Opening Batance 349 3,028 94 3,471
Additions 8o 603 60 M3
Disposals - - - -
Closing Balance 429 3,631 154 4,214
Net book value 9 3378 450 3,927
i3
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Industry Training Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2015 - continued

10.Contractual Obligations

ITA has entered into a number of multiple-year contracts for operating leases for premises. The
lease commitments are for space costs and excinde operating costs, These contractual
obligations will become liabilities in the Future when the terms of the condracts are met.
Disclosure relates to the unperformed portion of the contracts.

{in § thousands)
Mar 31, Mar3f, Mar3l, Mar3l, Mar31, There-
Confractual obligations 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 after
Office leases 433 4158 418 415 426 2,112

11.Expenses by Object
The following is a summary of expenses by object:

{in § thousands)
Mar 31, 2015 Mar 31, 2014
Training provider services (inchuding Youth) 78,354 83,273
CJF confractor services (Aboriginal, Immigrant and Women) 8752 9,338
Compensation and staff development 7,242 5,400
Communications, website and brand awareness 2,067 1,080
Other operating costs 2,295 1,732
I'YO-delivered services 1,960 5,200
Information systems / telecomnmnications 1,526 1,239
Other adminisirative costs 1,311 907
Amortization 844 743
Building occupancy 5635 411
Gain on disposal/wriicoff - (1)
164,916 109,372
14
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Industry Training Authority
Notes to Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2015 - continued

12.Related Party Transactions

ITA has the following transactiens with the government and other government controlled

organizations.

Ministry of Jobs, Towrism and Skills Training

- core funding

- projects CIF/LMA, ECDP

Ministry of movation, Technology & Cifizens' Services
Miristry of Advanced Education

Transfers fo:

Post secondary institions

School districts

Ministry of Innovation, Technology & Citizens' Services
Ministry of Education

Public Service Pension Plan

BC Siats

Ministry of Hezlth

Ministry of Labour

Crown Corporatien Employers’ Association

13. Budgeted Figures

94,444 94,444
9,204 14,674
470 429

. 168
104,118 109,715
70,245 75,698
4385 4,910
670 687
627 647
526 370

19 19

86 58

11 10

- 2
76,569 82,401

Budgeted figures have been provided for compatison purposes and have been approved by the
Board of Dircctors. These budgeted figures were inchuded in [TA’s 2014/15 Service Plan.

14. Comparative Figures

Certain comparative figures have been restated to conform to current year’s presentation.

15
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MINISTRY OF JOBS, TOURISM AND SKILLS TRANING
AND MINISTER RESPONSIBLE FOR LABOUR
INFORMATION NOTE
Cliff #: 109894

Pate: July 10, 2015
PREPARED FOR: Hanourabie Shirley Bond, Minister
ISSUE: Community Immigration Pilot — Fort St. John Meeting

BACKGROUND:

Following direction from the Ministers’ Roundtable in January 2015, Ministry staff have
worked with Citizenship and Immigration Canada (CIC) ta develop and implement a
Community Immigration Pilot. The purpose of the Pilot is to help selected communities
address labour market needs by using a community-driven approach to improve the
community's ability to attract, integrate, and retain immigrants and refugees. The
intended outcomes of the Pilot are:

o Improved labour market and economic ouicomes for regional communities;

« Improved economic and social outcomes for newcomers and refugees;

« Enhanced multi-sectoral partnerships to provide effective and efficient supports and
networks for newcomers and refugees; and

« Improved retention rates of newcomers and refugees.

Canada and B.C. agreed to approach four communities: Fort St. John, Prince George,
Kelowna, and Whistler. Fort St. John was the first community to be approached, and a
meeting was held in Fort St. John on July 13, 2015,

The meeting in Fort St. John was planned jointly with Mayor Lori Ackerman. Other
attendees included local Member of Parliament Beb Zimmer, a representative from MLA
Pat Pimm's office, the Fort St. John City Manager, the Chamber of Commerce, several
employers, and local service providers. See Appendix 1 for full list of attendees. In
advance of the community meeting, Ministry staff met with the Chamber of Commerce,
the Economic Development Officer, ACT Immigration, and the local immigrant serving
organization (S.U.C.C.E.S.S.) to gauge their interest. Feedback from these preliminary
meetings was incorporated into the afternoon discussion.

DISCUSSION:

At the meeting Ministry staff gave an overview of the Pilot and facilitated a discussion
about immigration opportunities and challenges (see Agenda in Appendix 2). The
participants were supportive of the Pilot and felt that Fort St. John has the interest and
capacity to participate. Mayor Ackerman has since followed-up and expressed strong
interest in the project, as has the Regional District representatives.
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The meeting attendees identified some potential challenges in Fort St. John, including:

Severe labour market shortages for all skills: Fort St. John has a systemic attraction
and retention challenge for international, national, and local workers. The lack of

warkers across all sectors, from entry level to high skilled jobs, limits business growth.

Transportation infrastructure: Lack of viable public transportation and highway issues
discourage potential workers from seeking employment outside of the town centre.
Obtaining a driver’'s license as a newcomer can take up to three years.

Lack of diversity: Although the town itself is fairly diverse, some participants stated
the oil and gas industry and work environment could be more welcoming.

Cyclical nature of production cycles and slow immigration system: The processing
time of current streams such as the Provincial Nominee Program (PNP) and Express

Entry do not adequately meet the need to bring in skilled workers quickly. Additionally,

the federal Temporary Foreign Worker Program changes have impacted mulitiple
sectors, especially the food services industry.

Some of the opportunities identified were:

Many available jobs: Employers from multiple sectors in the community have job
openings that need to be filled.

Enhancing the whole immigration pathway: ability to leverage and build on existing
work across the immigration pathway, including entry mechanisms, selection, foreign
qualification recognition, and settlement.

Focus on successful source countries: target recruitment to certain source countries
that are most likely to resuit in optimal integration and retention (e.g. similar climate,
comparable qualification systems). Fort St. John's safe environment and young
population is a selling point to immigrants with families and young children.

The pilot objectives have some similarities to a recent unsolicited proposal from ACT
Immigration to establish a pilot project through the PNP (Appendix 3: CLIFF 109385).
Staff are working fo integrate the two concepts where feasible; ACT Immigration
participated in the Fort St. John session and provided input.

NEXT STEPS:

General consensus within the community is to expedite the Pilot earlier than the timeline
proposed by the Ministry as there is a need to bring in more immigrants more quickly:

The Regional Economic Development Officer is reconvening the Fort St. John
meeting attendees this week to develop a proposal;

The proposal will be brought forward for the provincial and Federal government to
review within the next month;

The proposal may also be accompanied with a cover letter o Ministers Bond and
Alexander.

ATTACHMENTS: Appendix 1 — List of Attendees

Appendix 2 — Agenda: Ft St John Information Meeling
Appendix 3 — Previous Decision Note
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Contact; Keith Godin, Executive Director
Telephone: 250 216-5507

} Reviewed by

| Dir: N | ED: KG A/ADM: DM | DM: MIN:

I 575
Cariing Helander/Fiona Cheong
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APPENDIX 1: LIST OF ATTENDEES

Community Immigration Pilot Project — Fort $t. John Information Meeting

Pomeroy Sport Center West Meeting Room - Pomeroy Sport Centre, 9324 — 96 Sireet
1:00 — 3:00 PM - July 10, 2015

Mayor Loti Ackerman, City of FSJ

Keith Godin, JTST Labour Market & Immigration Division

Cloe Nicholls, Director, JTST Labour Market & Immigration Division
Tammy Danshin, JTST Economic Development Division

Bob Zimmer, Member of Parliament

Carly Dick, Office of LMA Pat Pimm

Larry Evans, Cify of FSJ

Dianne Hunter, City of FSJ

Chris Cvik, Peace River Regional District

© @O NSO h VN =

10. Jennifer Mocre, North Peace Economic Dev Corporation
11.Tony Cochlan, ACT immigration

12.Charles Scott, ACT immigration

13.Dorica Skobag, SUCCESS

14 Kim McPhedran, SUCCESS

15.Tina Catain, SUCCESS

16. Jeannette Karasiuk, Work BC Employment Centre
17.Megan Hansen, Chamber of Commerce
18.Rishabh Passauda, CIBC

19.Ramul Chaudhary, C/BC

20.Grant Barley, Arctic Construction L td
21.Sowathara Cheng, Wendy's Resfaurant

22 Adele Dyck, STAR 7

23.Andy Ackerman, Myriad Consulting

24.Colm Chadwick, Canadian Tire

25 Shirley Palmer-Hunt, SPH Consultancy

26.Gus Mcleod, G&T Restaurants, KFC

27.Sean Surerus, Surerus Pipeline Inc
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Community Immigration Pilot Project — Fort St. John Information Meeting

Pomeroy Sport Center West Meeting Room — Pomeroy Sport Centre, 9324 — 96 Street,

Fort St. John, BC

1:00 — 3:00 PM —July 10, 2015

~-LETOPIC T i TLEAD:
Welcome & Introductions Mavyor Lofi
Ackerman
1:10 - 1:15 | Purpose and objectives of meeting Keith Godin
1. Determine the viability and interest in a community
immigration project in Fort Si. John
2. [f of interest and viable, incorporate input from community
leaders into the scope, key objectives, and next steps,
including the identification of specific spensors for the
project.
1:15=1:35 | Overview of iImmigration in British Columbia Keith Godin
'1:35-2:00 | Discussion Roundtable 1: All
1. Based on your experience, what are the opportunities and
challenges in attracting and integrating newcomers to your
region?
2:00-2:20 | Overview of Community Immigration Pilot ~ for Fort St. John | Cloe Nicholls
2:20 - 2:50 | Discussion Roundtable 2: Tanr
1. In your opinion, would there be sufficient interest and
capacity to sustain a Community Immigration Pilot in Fort
§t. John?
2. What kind of role could / shouid governments, employers,
service providers, and other stakeholders have in the
Pilot?
2:50 ~ 3:00 | Close and Next Steps Mayor Lori
Ackerman
Keith Godin
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APPENDIX 3: PREVIOUS DECISION NOTE
MINISTRY OF JOBS, TOURISM AND SKILLS TRAINING
AND MINISTER RESPCNSIBLE FOR LABOUR
DECISION NOTE
CIHiff #: 108385

Date: June 11, 2015

PREPARED FOR: Honourable Shirley Bond, Minister

ISSUE: ACT Immigration and Business Solutions Provincial Nominee Program (PNP)
Proposal

BACKGROUND:

ACT Immigration and Business Solutions submitted an unsolicited proposal to
establish a pilot project through the BC PNP to allow for certain economic immigrants
to be selected without a confirmed job offer (see Appendix 1).

importantly, ACT has proposed to use the PNP to immigrate workers without a job
offer. ACT believes the current PNP requirement for a job offer limits flexibility for
regional communities to integrate large groups of immigrants.

ACT has been engaged with Ministry staff since September 2014 as well as Member
of Parliament Bob Zimmer (Prince George —~ Peace River) to discuss the proposal.
The scope and type of immigrants proposed by ACT is outside the terms of the
community pilot project discussed by Ministers Bond, Alexander and Kenney in
Ottawa on January 26" 2015. This community pilot project, which is under
development in partnership with Citizenship and Immigration Canada (CIC) is
progressing well.

As with any new PNP project, timing for implementation is subject to federat
agreement. Regardless of the possible options, no PNP applications wili be able to be
processed until January 2016 due fo oversubscription.

DISCUSSION:

One of the core objectives of the PNP is selecting individuals according to their ability
to establish economicaily and commitment to reside in BC. One of the key piliars is
the requirement for applicants to have a full-time job offer. Labour market attachment

for PNP nominees is over 90%, compared to 70-75% for federal economic immigrants.

Under the 2015 Canada-BC Immigration Agreement (CBCIA), the federal and
provinciai governments must mutually agree to all changes to the PNP program in BC.
As job offers are a key component of the new federal Express Entry maodel, it is
unlikely CIC would support a PNP stream without a job offer.

CIC may be open to approving a “modified job offer” pathway under the PNP, which
means the applicant must have demonstrated evidence of labour market attachment
without a concrete job offer, such as a short-term employment contract.
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e BC and CIC are currently in the process of designing and implementing a community
based pilot based for implementation in up to two communities in BC. ACT could
participate in this pilot; however, it would require a job offer to meet the existing

selection criteria.

OPTIONS:

.13

Approved [/ Not Approved

Date:

Contact: Scott MacDonald, ADM, Labour Market and Immigration Division

Comments:

Telephone: 250-952-3585 Cell; s.17

Reviewed by |
Dir CN  |ED:KG ADM: DSM DM: |
11575 o
 Nichalis
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MINISTRY OF JOBS, TOURISM AND SKILLS TRAINING
AND MINISTER RESPONSIBLE FOR LABOUR
DECISION NOTE
CIiff #; 109882

Date; July 13, 2015

PREPARED FOR: Honourable Shirley Bond, Minister

ISSUE: Increase to enhanced 2015 nominations for PNP Express Entry BC categories.

BACKGROUND:

B.C. has received an allocation of 5,500 nominations for 2015 from the federal
government (CIC). Skills Immigration represents 95% of annual nominations.

The 2015 allocation is comprised of 1,350 “enhanced” hominations restricted to
the federal Express Entry system, and 4,150 “base” provincial nhominations.

Due primarily to changes in the federal Temporary Foreign Worker program, the
PNP experienced a significant increase in demand for base Skills Immigration
categories and has accumulated an inventory of almost 5,000 Skifls applications.

To be fair and transparent to those people already in the inventory, the PNP
limited the number of new Skills Immigration applications for most categories o
200 for the remainder of 2015; this 200 application limit has now been reached.

The PNP has continued to accept Skills applications for the Express Entry BC
(EEBC), Northeast Pilot Project and Healthcare Professionals categories.

As of July 13", PNP has nominated 2,800 of the 5,500 from the 2015 allocation.

Of these, 548 are EEBC nominations. An additional 724 EEBC applications await
processing for a total of 1,272 EEBC applications received year-to-date. EEBC
applications are prioritized with processing times of 3 — 4 months from date of
receipt and an average approval rate of 98%.

With the implementation of PNP online, program staff can now tfrack client
profiles, or applications in progress, for each stream. In addition to the 1,280
EEBC applications received, there are 850 profiles created for EEBC categories.

CIC has acknowledged B.C.'s leadership on immigration and, in particular, has
recognized B.C.'s work as an early adopter of Express Entry.

B.C. was the first province to nominate applicanis under the Express Entry
system, and has promoted EEBC extensively to employers and applicants.

DISCUSSIOCN:
$.13,8.17
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s.13,8.17

OPTIONS:
$.13,8.17

105 of 105



